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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Hon. Jessie Cortes Ramos and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature of the 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Aguada 

Aguada, Puerto Rico 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
Municipality of Aguada Project, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did 
not audit the financial statements of Jardines de Aguada Project, which statements reflect total 
assets of $1 ,284,359 as of June 30, 2013, and total revenues of$438,0I 1 for the year then ended. 
Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our 
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Jardines de Aguada Project, is based 
solely on the report of the other auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

Rio Picdras Heights. 1733 Calle Tinto. San Juan, PR 00926-3252 
www.gtcpapr.com • Tel. 787 306-7777 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinio~ the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of 
Aguada, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

0th.er Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that . the 
management' s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-16 and 
68- 71 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic :financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's basic 
financial statements. The supplementary information shown in pages 72 through 77, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, Office of the Inspector General, and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits 
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary infonnation and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
supplementary and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Audidng Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
19, 2014, on our consideration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of Jaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
Municipality of Aguada' s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
March 19, 2014 

The stamp number 026 License #96 
Expires December 1, 2014 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Aguada's financial performance provides an overall review of the 
Municipality's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2013. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to 
look at the Municipality's tinancial perfonnance as a whole; this section should be read in conjunction with the 
basic financial statements to obtain a better Wlderstanding of the financial position and the results of operations of 
the Municipality. Our analysis follows this section. 

FINANCIAL IDGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the Municipality, on a government-wide basis, exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal 
year 2013 by $36,331.302 (net position). Of this amount, the Municipality presented an unrestricted net 
position (deficit} of $(1 ,021,500). 

• For the Municipality's governmental activities revenues decreased 12% but expenses reports no significant 
change when compared with fiscal year 2012. As a result, the net position increased $1, 146,650 or 3% with 
respect of prior year restated net position. 

• A net change - increase in the fund balances of the Municipality's governmental funds of $409,502 in the 
fiscal year 2013 resulted in reported ending fund balances of $13, 128,946, increasing 3% with respect to 
2012 year. Approximately 16% of the total fund balances is unrestricted (committed, assigned or 
unassigned). 

• For the fiscal year 2013, the General Fund reported an excess of revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures and other financing uses of $323,778. The unassigned fund balance amounts to $990,903, a 
decrease of 4% as compared to 2012. 

• The investment in capital assets (total primary government} as of June 30, 2013 was $4 1,726,932 (net of 
depreciation). 

• Long-tenn debt (total primary government) increased to $21,325,542 or approximately 5% with respect to 
the prior year. 

• On a budgetary basis, actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by $89,645. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Municipaljty's financial report comprises four components: (I) management's discussion and analysis 
(presented here), (2) basic financial statements, (3) required supplementary infonnation and (4) other supplementary 
infonnation. 

[ 

[ 

II 
COMPONENTS OF111E 

.FINANCIAL 
POSITION 

I 
I 

II 
I 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of two kinds of statements, each with a different view of the 
Municipality's finances. The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-t.enn infonnation 
about the Municipality's overall financial status. The fund financial statements focus on major aspects of the 
Municipality's operations, reporting those operations in more detail than the government-wide statements: 

Basic Financial Statements , 

• 

• 

Govemment-Wule Financial SUdemmts 

The government-wide statements report information about the Municipality as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector businesses. They are prepared using the flow of economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The first government-wide statement -
the statement of net position presents all of the reporting entity's non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in the Municipality's net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. Other non-financial factors such as the condition of the Municipality's capital assets may 
need to be considered to assess the overall health of the Municipality. The second statement - the statement 
of activities - presents information showing how the net position changed during the year. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account in the statement of activities regardless of 
when cash is received or paid. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: governmental and business-type 
activities. The governmental activities report the Municipality's basic services such as public works and 
sanitation. public safety, culture and recreation. housing, welfare, and community development, education 
and general administration. These activities are primarily financed through taxes (property, sales end use 
and municipal license) and intergovernmental revenues. Included in the governmental activities are the 
governmental funds. Business-type activities charges fees to customers to finance the costs of their 
activities. The activities of Jardines de Aguada Project are included here. 

Flotd Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide ,more detailed infonnation about the Municipality's most significant 
funds. Funds are accounting devices that the Municipality uses to keep track of specific sources of fimding 
and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by Fed.eral and Commonwealth regulations, 
as well as by bond covenants. The Municipality has two kinds of funds: governmental and proprietary 
funds. 

Governmental funds - the Municipality's basic services are included in governmental funds, which are 
used to acc-0unt for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the govemment­
wide statements. However, unlike the government-wide statements, the governmental funds are prepared 
using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and ·the modified accrual basis of 
a.ccounting. Under this approach the financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
external resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at year-end. Consequently, the 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether 
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Municipality's 
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the govemment­
wide statements, additional information is provided on a subsequent page that explains the relationship (or 
differences) between the government-wide and fund statements. 
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COMMONWEALIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Proprietary funds - services for which the Municipality charges customers a fee are generally reported as 
proprietary funds. These funds. like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short­
term financial information and are accounted for using the economic resoun::es measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The Municipality's proprietary funds consist of an enterprise fund. the same as 
business-type activities. The Municipality reports the activities of Jardines de Agu.ado Project as an 
enterprise fund. 

The fund statements focus on major funds. The Municipality's major governmental and enterprise funds are 
funds that comply with a minimum criterion that is, a percentage of the assets and deferred outflows; 
liabilities and deferred inflows; revenues or expenditures or based on the Municipality's official's criteria if 
the fund is particularly important to financial statement users. Funds diat do not comply with this criterion 
are grouped and presented in a single column as other governmental funds or other nonmajor enterprise 
funds. 

• Notes to financial stlltDnDlts 

The basic financial statements also include notes to explain information in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. 

Required supplementary information 

The statements and notes are followed by the required. supplementary information that contains the budgetary 
comparison schedule for the General Fund. 

Supplementary information 

The supplementary information also includes a financial data schedule containing financial information of the 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program administered by the Municipality. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Position 

The following table presents a summary of the Statements of Net Position as of Imie 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Gr GoNzALEZ ToRREs & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
~ Qf A.ICPA ?R Societ)' ol CPA Ind Assoc:ietiioft of Cettifted Fr-.ud Eumi!!!fS 

7 



-
-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

TABLE I 

Primarv Govena111e11t 
Governmental Activities Business-tv1 1e Activities Total 

2012 (as 
2013 restated 2013 2012 2013 

Assets 
Current and other assets $ 19,071,607 $ 21,790,305 s 236,691 s 269,168 s 19,308,298 s 
Capital assets 40,679,264 38,755,762 1,047,668 J,019.596 41,726,932 

Total as.sets 59,750,871 60,546,067 1,284,359 1,288,764 61,035,230 

Liabilities 
Current and other liabilities 5,903,563 7,504,695 84,885 82,169 5,988.,448 
Long-tenn liabilities 16,672,722 17 013,436 2,042,758 2,083,829 18,715.480 

Total llablUties 22,576,285 24,518.131 2,127,643 2,165,998 24,703,928 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 30,970,605 30,519,880 (1,036,161) (l,101,892) 29,934,444· 
Restricted 7,330,095 6,530,864 88,263 150,241 7,4.JS,358 
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,126,114) (l,022,808) 104 614 74,417 (1,021,500) 
Total net position s 37,174,586 s 36,027,936 s (343,234) s (877,234) s 36,331,302 s 

2012 (as 
restated 

22,059,473 
39,775,358 
61,834,831 

7,586,864 
19,097,265 
26,684129 

29,417,988 
6,681,105 
(948 391) 

35,150,702 

Net position (difference of non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows versus liabilities and deferred inflows) serve as a 
useful indicator of a government's financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Municipality's net 
position is one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. At June 30, 2013, assets 
exceeded its liabilities by $36,331,302. Net position reported an increase of 3% with respect to fiscal period 2012. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net position (82 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (land, 
buildings, equipment, and infrastructure) less accumulated depreciation and less any related outstanding debt used to 
acquire those assets. The Municipality uses these assets to provide services to its citizens and, consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. The resources needed to repay the debt related to these capital assets 
must be provided from other sources because capital assets are not generally liquidated for the purpose of retiring 
deht. 

As ofJune 30 2013, the Municipality presented an unrestricted net position (deficit) of $(1,021,500). This deficit 
primarily arises from long-term obligations such as compensated absences and judgment and claims, among other 
debts, for which the MWlicipality did not provide fimding in previous budgets. Historically, such obligations have 
been 'budgeted on a "pay as you go" basis without providing funding for their future liquidation. In addition, 
operational loans and certain general obligation bonds do not have a related capital asset to be reported as net 
investment in capital assets. Therefore, they are reported as part of the unrestricted net position section. 

Change$ ilr net position 

The following table summarizes the changes in net position for r:be fiscal years ended 2013 and 2012: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

TABLEl 

Prim•rv Govenmeat 
Govemmenbll Activities BnsilteSJ--hl- Actlvitits 

2012 (as 
2813 restated 2013 2012 

Prognm rne•ues: 
Fees, fines and charges for services s 5,027,034 s 4,398,262 s 437,618 s 433,669 s 
Operating grants and contributions 1,014,037 1,358,788 - -
Capital grants and contributions 1,370,367 2,587,450 - -

Genenl revenues: 
Property taxes 3,490,615 3,624,809 - -
Municipal license taxes 1,619,774 1,383,006 - -
Sales and use taxes 2,085,442 2,034,930 - -
Grants and cootnoutions not ~trided 
to specific programs 5,901,079 8,139,881 - -

Interest and other 581,371 488,540 401 325 
Total revenues 21,089,739 24,015,666 438.019 433,994 

Expenses: 
General government 8,140,818 10,437,959 361,934 310,760 
Public wodcs and sanitation 5,788,626 3,507,096 - -
Public safety 1,000,391 81>6,721 - -
Culture and recreation 2,021,284 1,206,392 - -
Health 492,975 402,168 - -
Housing, ~Jfare and community 
development 1,737,769 2,609,942 - -

Educalion 29,650 -
Interest on long term debt 731.576 824,356 42.135 65912 

Tot.I expenses 19,943,089 19,854,634 404,069 376,672 

Cb.age iu uet position 1,146,6.SO 4,161 ,032 33,950 57,322 
Net position-beginning of year, as 

restated 36,027,936 31,866,904 {877,2341 (934,556) 
Net position-end of year s 37,174,586 $ 36.027,936 s (843,284) $ (877.234) $ 

Tot.I 
2012 (as 

2013 resmted 

5,464,672 $ 4,831,931 
1,014,037 1,358,788 
1,370,367 2,581,450 

3,490,615 3,624,809 
1,619,774 1,383,006 
2,085,442 2,034,930 

5,901,079 8,139,881 
581,m 488 865 

21,527,758 24,449,660 

8,502,752 10,748,719 
5,788,626 3,501,096 
1,000,391 866,721 
2,021,284 1,206,392 

492,975 402,168 

1,737,769 2,609,942 
29,650 -

773,711 890,268 
20,347,158 20,231,306 

1, 180,600 4,218,354 

35,150,702 30.932.348 
36,331,302 s 35,150,702 

Revenues, governmental activities - the four major sources of revenues of the Governmental Activities of the 
Municipality in fiscaJ year 2013 are: unrestricted grants and contributions (28%), charges for services (24%), 
property taxes (17%) and saJes and use taxes (10%). Revenues decreased 12% due mainly to a 47%, 25% and 27% 
decrease in capitaJ grants, operating grants and unrestricted grants revenues respectively with respect to fiscal year 
2012. The Municipality reported less income on certain federal and state grants and contributions including CDBG 
and CommonweaJth Legislature Resolutions. The following Figure 1 illustrates the revenue comparison betwee_n 
2013 and 2012: 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Figure l 

2013 

•2012 

Revenues, business-type activities - revenues of business-type activity of Jardines de Aguada Project consists 
mainly from charges for services - rental income paid by tenants and HUD - and remains stable with respect to 
fiscal year 2012. 

Cu lture and 
recreation 

10% 

Public safety 
5% 

Public works 
29% 

Figure2 

Municipality of Aguada 
Governmental Activities - Expense Oj strlbution 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201'3 

Ho,usin 11:. welfare 
and community 

develop. 

Education 
0% 

9% Int erest on l ong 
term debt 

4% 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY.OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Expenses, governmental activities- Figure 2 illustrat.e the distn'bution of expenses in fiscal year 2013. As 
disclosed, the largest governmental activities expenses are general government with 41 o/o, public works and 
sanitation with 29% and culture and recreation with 100/o. Total expenses increased only .4% when compared with 
:fiscal year 2012. 

Expenses, business-type activities - expenses of business-type activity of Jardines de Aguada Project consists of 
administrative and operational expenses and remains stable with respect to fiscal year 2012. 

The Statement of Activities reports revenues and expenses in a format that focus on the net cost of each function of 
the Municipality. Both the gross and net cost of the function, which is otherwise being supported by the general 
government revenues, is compared to the re.venues generated directly by the function. This Statement reduces gross 
direct expenses, including depreciatio.o. by related program revenues, operating and capital grants, and 
contributions. The following table discloses the 2013 govemme:otal activities expenses net of program revenue and 
the general revenues available to finance remaining costs: 

TABLE3 

Expenses Net of Program Revenues-Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year ended Jone 30, 2013 

Net expenses 2013 
General government $ (2.992,140) 
Public works and sanitation (4,951,054) 
Public safety (1,000,391) 
Culture and recreation (2,017,784) 
Health (492,975) 
Housing, welfare and community development (316,061) 
Education (29,650) 
Inte:rest on long term debt (731,576) 
Total expenses, net of program revenues (12,531,631) 

General revenues 
Taxes 7,195,831 
Grants and contributions not restricted to 
specific programs 5,901,079 
Interest and other 581,371 
Total general revenues 13,678,281 

Change in net position $ 1,146,650 

Expenses of governmental activities not covered by program revenues were finally covered by other general 
revenues, as disclosed in the above Table 3. 

Expenses of the business-type activity were fully covered by charges for services. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S FUNDS 

Governmental fllnds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and 
balances of resources available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a Municipality's net resources 
available at the end of a fiscal year as they represent the portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to 
use for a particular purpose by an external party. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $13, 128,946, a net 
increase of 3% in comparison with the prior year. Of the total fund balances, $2,063,480 (or 16%) constitutes 
unrestricted fund balance, of which $627,737 (or 5%) are unassigned funds. The remainder of the fund balances is 
restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending. Following is a summary of the financial analysis of the 
Municipality's major funds: 

• General F11nd 

• 

• 

The general fund is the operating fund oft.he Municipality. The fund balance of the general fund represents 
approximately I 80/o of total ending fund balances. Of the total fund balance 29% of the fund balance is 
committed, 30% is assigned. The remainder of$990,903 is unassigned fund balance, which represents 41 % 
of the total fund balance. This unassigned fund balance decreased 4% with respect to the prior year. The 
total fund balance of the general fund is distributed between (1) Fund 01 of Sl,137,674 and, (2) special 
funds ofSl,288,972. These special funds represent fumd balance of the general fund committed or assigned 
for specific purposes recorded in the Municipality's accounting system as special funds. 

During the fiscal year the fund balance of the general fund increased by $323,778. The main sources oC 
revenues of the general fund in fiscal year 2013 are: intergovernmental subsidie-s from the Commonwealth 
with 36%, taxes (property taxes, sales and use taxes and municipal license truces) with 32% and charges for 
services with 31 %. Revenues decreased 4% in comparison to 2012. The Iarg~ expenditures of the general 
fu.od are public works and sanitation with 47o/o, general government with 31 % and public safety with 9%. 
Expenditwes decreased 4% as compared to 2012 year. As disclosed above, the general fund is distributed 
between Fund 01 and other special funds. The increase in general fund ofS323,778 is the net effect of: (1) 
a negative change in fund balance of $( 410,677) in Fund 01 and, (2) a positive change of $734,455 in the 
other special funds. 

Co'""'1Utity Development Block Grtlltt Program Furrd ("CDBG") 

Over the prior year CDBG's fund revenues increased and expenditures decreased, producing a positive net 
change in fund balance. A negative beginning balance restatement of $166,633 caused an 83% decrease in 
the beginning fund balance. The restatement is explained in the notes to the financial statements . 

This fund report revenue sources from grants provided by the Commonwealth's Legislature restricted for 
specific purposes. During the' 2013 'the fund balance dee~ $701,298. The fund received additional 
grants of$100,000. Amounts were expended mainly in public works and capital outlays. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

• Debt Service Fund 

The debt service fund had an increase in fund balance during the current year of$277,082 to bring the year 
end fund balance to $3,426,975 which represents 26% of total fund balances. The increase essentially 
results from a decrease in principal debt payments. Revenues increued slightly 1 % on property and sales 
taxes deposited in the redemption funds. 

• Bonds llltd Nota .!nuance Fund 

During the year 2013 the Municipality recorded as other financing sources the issuance of a general 
obligation bond of $75,000 for improvements to a basketball court; a $1,490,000 special obligation bond 
for the construction of the "Club Deportivo Vacacional" project and a $200,000 special obligation bond for 
the "Remodelacion Plaza Monumento el Soldado" project. The fund expended $1,230,049 in capital 
projects during 2013. 

General Fund Budgetary IIlghlights - the general fund original budget for the fiscal year 2012-2013 presented a 
.1% decrease with respect to the prior year budget During the year amendments of$201,452 increased the original 
budget to $14,466,128. Actual revenues tall short from the revised budgeted revenues by $28,398 (net) but the 
Municipality reported a positive variance of $4-02,247 between revised budgeted appropriations and actual 
expenditures. Actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by $(89,646). During 2013 year the Municipality 
approved a readjustment of$463,495 from prior year fund balance to be expended in capital projects. 

Proprietary funds 

The Municipality's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in ·the government-wide 
statements but in more detail. The net position (deficit) of Jardine.r de Aguada Project ("the Project") at the end. of 
the fiscal year amounted to $(843,284) resulting mainly from a negative net investment in capital assets of 
$(1,036,161). This negative balance is the resuh of the balance of the net capital assets of Sl,047,668 less the 
balance of the related mortgage payable of $2,083,829. The Project reported a positive change in ne1 position of 
$33,950 in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets 

At the end of the fiscal year, the Municipality's capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
amounted $40,679,264 (net of accumulated depreciation). 1hese assets include buildings, roads aod bridges, land, 
machinery and equipment, park facilities, and. vehicles. This amount represents a net increase of 5% over the prior. 
year. The following Table 4 discloses the capital assets balances as of Jlllle 30, 2013: 

Gr GoNZALFZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Table4 

Primarv Covernmeat 
Governmental Activities Business-tvoe Activities Total 

2012 (as 20U(as 
2013 rabted 2013 2012 2013 resUted 

Non-depreciable assets: 
Land $ 4,327,185 $ 4,261,866 s 93,700 $ 93,700 $ 4,420,885 $ 4,355,566 
Consll"Uction in progress 1,771,327 3,680,839 - - 1,171,327 3,680,839 
Depreciable assets (net): 
Land improvements - - 112.563 l25,405 112,.563 125,4-05 
Buildings and buildings improvements 25,013,313 23,315,741 815,730 784,686 25,829,043 24,100,427 
lnfraslructure 8,499,834 6,186,255 - - 8,499,834 6,186,255 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 1,067,605 1,311,061 25,675 15,804 1,093,280 1,326.865 
Total $ 40,679,264 s 38,755,762 $ 1,047,668 s 1,019,.595 s 41,726.932 s 39,775,357 

Governmental activities - the Municipality's governmental activities major capital projects that were still in 
construction as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

• Sport Complex Boulevard - $381,262 
• Construction of Splash Park - $300,366 
• Espinal Elderly Center - $270,570 

During the year the Municipality transferred $3,682,991 from construction in progress for finished infrastructure and 
building and building improvements projects. 

Business-type activities - capital asset's building improvements increased $101,603 which is the most significant 
addition during the year. 

More detaiJed information about the Municipality's capital assets is presented in Note F to the fmancial statements. 

Long-term debt 

The following is a summary of the MunicipaHty's outstanding debt as of June 30, 2013 and 2012: 

TABLES 

Olttstandlng Long-term Debt - Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Pt!llTS endd J1me JO, 

Govemme11tal Activities 
2013 2012 las rata-" 

General, Special Obligation Bonds and Notes $ 14,830,000 $ 13,996,000 
Note payable to CRIM-financing of delinquent accounts 166,660 175,432 

Compensated absences 2,557,994 2,873,279 
Christmas Bonus 237,173 244,945 
Payable to CRJM•property tax advances current - 56,387 
Judgments and claims 500,000 6,000 
Payable to EPA 15,000 22,500 

Payable to PREP A 975,957 928,395 

Total s 19,282,7&4 s 18,302.938 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The beginning balance oflongterm debt was restated for anet amount of$1,449,801 resulting in a total beginning 
balance ofS 18,302,938. At year-end, the governmental activities of the Municipality had $14,830,000 in general and 
special bonds and notes outstanding. a net increase with respect to the prior year since it has issued long term debt 
during 2013 in the amount of $1, 765,000. With respect to other long-term debts (other than general obligation bonds 
and notes) the most significant increase resulted from a settled legal claim of $500,000, paid subsequent to June 30, 
2013. 

The outstanding debt of the business-type activity consist of permanent residences loans provided by USDA-Rural 
Development There were no significant changes with respect to 2012 year. 

More detailed information about the Municipality's long-term liabilities is presented in Note G of the .financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Municipality's officials considered certain factors when establishing the fiscal year's 2013-2014 budget One of 
these fuctors is the economy. Among economic areas considered are the estimates for the growth or decline in 
population, personal income, housing statistics and unemployment rates. The Municipality' s unemployment rate at 
June 2013 stands at 15o/o, and the C-0mmonwealth rate stands at 13.SoA. 

For year 2013-2014 the Municipality applied a conservative approach in the development of budget estimates. 
Amounts available for appropriations in the General Fund are $13,773,934 representing a decrease of approximately 
3% with respect to prior year estimates·. Budgeted expenditures are expected to rise according to the increase of 
budgeted revenues. If these estimates are realized, the Municipality's budgetary general fund balance is expected to 
increase modestly by ·the close of the 2013-2014 fiscal year. In addition to the general fund estimated budget ·the 
Municipality plans to submit to the Federal and Commonwealth government fund proposals for welfare and 
comm.unity development as well as permanent capital improvements and public works. 

A3 pan of the budgetary management of the general fund for fiscal period 2013-2014 effective on July I , 2013 the 
Municipal Legislature approved Ordinance No. 53 Series 2012-2013 as amended by Ordinance No. 4 Series 2013-
2014 to establish a fiscal and administrative reorganization process to review the Municipality's organizational 
structure, administrative operations and processes to identify ways to improve efficiency and productivity. The 
process was implemented in order to address the general economic conditions, ·the fiscal condition of the 
Municipality and the reduction of funds and a;w.ards from the federal government As part of this process, Ordinance 
53 as amended implemented a salary reduction plan which is temporary until the Finance Director certifies that the 
plan has generated sufficient recurrent resources to cover the projected general fund's budgetary shortfall. For more 
details please refer to Note S of the basic financial statements. 

As more fully descnbed in Note S the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is facing a financial crisis due to limited 
liquidity, genera.I fund deficit, a si7.eab1e amount of debt, an underfunded government pension system and an 
economy recession since 2006. A3 a result of these m~, credit ratings agencies have been consistently 
downgrading the Commonwealth's and certain public c01poration•s general obligation bonds ratings. In order to 
address these matters the Commonwealth began to make legislation to refonn its governmental pension system, 
provide liquidity to the ·Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico ("GOB"), its fiscal agent, and strength 
sinking funds to assess financial markets. The Commonwealth. estimates that th.ese corrective actions, along others to 
be implemented, will have a positive impact on the Comm.onwealth itself: GOB, the municipalities and its citizens. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Among other actions on January 24, 2014 the Commonwealth approved Act No. 18 and 19. Those Act's provides 
for the restructuring and creation of financing structures from sales and use tax sources to guarantee and pay 
municipal long term debt issuances. As a result of this legislation the mUD:icipalities of Puerto Rico may improve its 
credit capacity along with maintaining sufficient resources for operations. 

On February 4, 2014, February 7, 2014 and February 11, 2014 Standard & Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P''), 
Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's") and Fitch Ratings ("Fitch") respectively, lowered its ratings on the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's general obliption (GO) debt and other of its instrumentalities such as GDB, ERS 
and COFINA. The downgrades follow S&P's, Moody's and Fitch's evaluation of liquidity and access to markets. It 
is the opinion of the Municipality's management that the corrective actions taken and to be taken in current and 
fiscal periods thereafter will lower the impact of this decision and cause a positive turnaround on the 
Commonwealth's and the Municipality's finances. ' 

CONTACTING THE MUNICIPALITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the 
Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
any questions about this report or need any additional information contact the Finance Department at the 
Municipality of Aguada, Box 517, Aguada, P.R. 00602. 
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- COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

ST A TEMENT OF NET POSffiON - JUNE 30, 2013 

Prima!:l Government - Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,800,246 $ 122,333 $ 4,922,579 
Receivables, net 

Mtmicipal license taxes 178.279 178,279 - Sales and use taxes !04,795 104,795 
Rent 17,393 17,393 
Others 1,791 25,076 26,867 - Due from: 
Commonwealth Government 1,680,534 1,680,534 
Federal Government 374,556 374,556 - Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equiwlents 1,794,023 88,263 1,882,286 
Cash 'Mth fiscal agents 10,l] 9,990 10,119,990 - Other Assets 1,019 1,019 

-Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 6,098,512 93,700 6,1 92,212 
Other capital assets, net 34,580,752 953,968 35,534,720 

Total capital assets, net 40,679,264 1,047,668 41,726,932 
Total assets 59,750~871 1,284,359 61,035,230 

LIABILITIES 
AccoW\ts payable and accrued Liabilities 1,445,392 43,8 15 1,489,207 
Accrued interest payable 364,.353 364,353 
Due to: 
Commonwealth Government 389,449 389,449 

Unearned revenues 
Municipal license taxes 1,094,307 1,094,307 

Long tenn liabilities: 
Due within one year 2,610,062 41 ,070 2,651 ,132 
Due in more than one year 16,672,722 2,042,758 18,715,480 

- Total liabilities 22.576,285 2,127,643 24,703,928 

NETPOSmON 

-
Net investment in capital assets 30,970,605 (1,036,16 1) 29,934,444 

Restricted for: 

- Capital projects 2,386,775 2,386,775 
Debt service 4,257,.385 4,257,385 
Other specified purposes 685,935 88,263 774,198 

Unrestricted (deficit) ~ l,1 26.114) 104,6 14 (1,021.500} 

Total net position s 37,174,586 $ (843,284) $ 36J31J02 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 18 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Prognim Revenaes 
Net (E1pense1) Revnuu and 

Changes ia Net Po1i1iom 
Fees, FIMt ad Operatia& Capital Primll')' Government 

Cha11e1 &Jr Grau and Gruuud Govemmutal Business-type 
Puodtom Eil!!!lllU aerylcea Conlrlbutlom Contributlom ActlvitlH ActMtle1 Total 

Govern•ntal actlvltlu: 
Gcne!111 !!OYCl'llllCnt $ 8,140,818 $ 5,ll02,53S $ s 146,143 $ (2,992,140) $ $ (2,992.140) 
Public wor!IJ and slllilatiln S,788,626 21,019 816,553 (4,951,054) (4,951,054) 
Pllb!C safely 1,000,391 (l,000,391) (1,000,391) 

~ 
CUiture and recrealiln 2,021,284 3,SOO (2,017,784) (2,017,784) 
Health 492,975 (4'll,975) (49:!,975) 
HOllS.iu& welfBre and co1DDlllllily dl!YOlopmcnl 1,737,7~ 1,014,037 41Ylf>7l (316,061) (316,{)61) 3:(")0 Education 29,6SO (29,6.SO) (29,650) ~ CD 

[~o lnlerest on "' tetm debt 7~1276 {731276} (731276} 
?,tii· z Tola! governmental actMtlea 19,943,089 s.crn.oS4 1,014,037 1,370,367 (12,531,631) (12,531,631) 
!:. a.N 
~ -o> 
... c: I:"" Bualne11-type 1etlvltlt1: 
» tT~ r= Jardines de Agiada Project 404069 437618 33,s49 33,549 
. o ~ .:z )> Tota1 ba1lne11-type activities 404069 437618 33,S49 33,549 

a o 0 
~ 8 ~ Total primary government $ 20,347,158 $ 5,464,672 $ 1,014,(!37 $ IJ70,367 (12,531,631) 33,549 (12,498,082) • c: 
~:J ~ 
~ or 
~ ;;l~ General revenues 2--~ (/I 
g Ill Taxes: P. :>(j Property lallts 3,490,615 3,490,615 
i ~o Muni:ip&l licenae taxes 1,619,774 1,619,774 o..: 
? :Ji-a Salos and uae t11Xes 2,085,442 2,08S,442 
~(/I 

~ c: . Grants and eontrilulilns not restricted to specif.: proprm 5,901,079 5,901,079 i iif Cl'.> Interest 3S6,0S4 8 356,062 
I a(j Other 225,317 393 225,710 ~fl) 

Total pnerlll revenues 13,678~1 401 13,6~fKJ. 

Change in net position 1,146,650 33,950 1,l&J/iOO 
Net position-beginning '36,crn :l.'36 (877~34} 351150,702 
Net position-ending $ 37.174~ $ !843a84l s '36~31~ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Cot111DUDll)' CommonwNlth Bo11dund Other Toi.II 
l>eftlopmeat Block Ltllllatu~ Debt NotN Governmental Governmental 

General Grant Pro1rain bolullont Service lu111nee Pundt Jl'uach 

Mm 
Cult end calh cquiwlenta $ 3,954,862 $ $ $ $ $ $ 3,954,862 
Receivablo1, not: 

Municipal liccme tues 171,279 178,279 

sat .. and'* tues 104,795 104,795 

RentJ 1nd comlnlction pmmita 17,393 17,393 
Olller 1,791 1,791 

~ 
Duo from: 
Conunoo-1di Ooven1111on1 1,322,BBS 10J,S89 2S6,060 1,680,534 
Foclml Gov11111111ent 244,844 129,712 374,SS6 

;::()C') Otli«fundt 388,133 3811,133 

~ CD Reetriemd Ute11: 

ia:o Cash and calh equiwloat1 29 2,047,424 591,954 2,639,407 

~ ffi'z Cull widi fiaul apta 660 41s201149 .510091051 590 130 1011191990 
~ o.N Totalauett $ S,968,7911 $ 244,873 $ 2,047.424 $ 4,621,738 $ S,009,051 $ 1,567,856 $ 19,459,140 
~ -u~ 
-oC~ ""J Uabl!ltig Deremc! lnOowt of RwuDlCI 11d had Balapm CDcllc!tl 
8'. ~ 
~ )> !:'1 Uabllldut 

~ 8 0 Accouota pmyablo end eccruod liabilities $ 548,087 $ 130,682 $ 148,872 s $ 325,693 195,801 $ 1,449,141 

;: o~ Matured booda wt notoa payablo 844,000 844,000 
~ § c Matured iniere.t payable 3.50,763 350,763 
0. l'r:t 
~ iii Cl) Duoto: 

8. ;.~ Commoa-11h Ocrvemniont 389,449 389,449 

f: Otherftwl. 114,191 273,942 388,133 

P.::J (j Unoamod-: 
0 c. 

Mwiicipal Ii- taxoa 110941307 ~ oO 1 094,307 

s. o.: Total ll1bllltlea 21031,843 244 873 248872 11194,763 32.51693 469749 451.5 793 

":J~ ii en 
; s..cn Dermod lgQow pf llgopup x- Unavaillble reyepuo1 • Commonwealih Clowmmflll Fundt 1,322;708 5. ~ (j 110,561 1,433,269 

~- Unavailable tWellUOt • Federal grants 121,700 72,431 194,131 
~ (/) 

Unawilable --• Otherl 187601 187601 
Toial deferred lnOow of ~urcea 11510~09 121 700 1~992 11SIS1001 

fuad Ba!yw (dtOdt): 

~ 1,798,552 3,426,97' 4,683,358 1,1.56,SSJ 11,06$,466 

Committed 701,280 701,280 

ANipM 734,463 734,463 

U11U1iflud 990903 il2117002 i241.4662 627737 
Total fund beluca (dlfldt) 2.4261646 i12117002 11798~$2 314261975 41683~.58 mus 1311281946 

Total ll1bllld-. cle(erred lnftowt of raourcu 

••d fland balanc• (defldt) $ $19681798 s 244.873 $ 2047424 $ 4,621,738 $ s,009,051 s 11s61,ss6 $ 19,459,740 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSIDON 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Total governmeat:al fund balances: 

Amounts reported for go~rnmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are 
different because: 

Capital assets med in governmental activities are oot current fineocial resources aod, 
therefore, are not reported in the govermnental funds balance sheet 

Other assets are rot awilab1e to pay cunimt-period expenditures and, therefore, are 
reported as deferred inflows of resources in the funds: 
Receivables: 

Municipal License Taxes 
Rent 

Due from Common~ entities: 
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREP A) 
Office for the lmproYement of Public Schools ("OMEPj 
Puerto Rico Department oflhmsportation 
CRIM-current year property tax adwnces liquidation 
Puerto Rico Department ofTreasury-Cbristmas boID..IS reimbursement 

Due from Federal Government: 
Federal grants - CDBG 
Federal Grants - H82.8l"d Mitigation 
Federal graots - Emergency Shelter Grant 
Federal grams- P .R Office of the Ombudsman for the Elderly- Title ID-E 

Interest liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, ere mt 

reported in the ~ 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in ·the CU!Tent 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 
General obligation bonds andootes 
Compensated absences 
Judgement and claims 
Doubtful! accounts debt payable to CRIM 

Christmas bo~ 
PREPAdebt 
EPA debt 

Net position ofeovernmental activities: 

$ 177,853 

9,748 

915,956 
45,587 

64,973 

236,593 

110,159 

121,700 

18,750 

46,570 

7,11 1 

(13,986,000) 

(2,557,994) 

(500,000) 

(166,660) 

(237,173) 

(975~57) 

(l I,250) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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s 13,128,946 

40,679,264 

1,815,000 

(13,590) 

(18,435,034) 

$37,174,586 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Co11mualty CO-OD'll'ettffb Bond•ud Other Tolal 
Development Block Leglllature Debt Nottt Goverameatal Governmental 

Gaenl Grant Pl"OIU'lm Relolutiou Serviee Iuunc:e Fuadt Fu1d1 

Semrl 
TIXeS: 

Propezty taxes s 2,411,934 s s s 1.093,903 $ $ s 3,505,837 
MWlicipal license taxes 1,441,921 1,441,921 -
Sales and 1110 taxes l,298,S79 786,863 2,08.S,442 

lntergovemmental 

~ 
Commonwealth aovemment S,864,62S 100,000 680,S81 6,645,206 
Federal aovemmont 981,584 1,013,298 1,994,882 

Fees, tines and chirps fur aervic:es 4,969,74S 4,969,745 
lnteRS! 17,410 3,807 334,296 S41 3S6,0S4 

l ~GJ Other 162~72 69347 231 619 .ao Totlllnwenua 16,166,486 981,584 100,000 l,884,S73 334,296 1,763,767 21,230,706 

" ~Z Jxpspdltwm 
!: a.~ Current: 1-or-o o-.1 gOvemment 6,561,684 126,257 342,663 7,030,604 
J 5-~ Public worb 111d lllllitalion 5,209,072 44,404 181 ,185 S,434,661 
r ~ Public atety 819,096 18,831 837,927 
~ )>~ Culture and reaoation l,3Sl,S79 32 l,JSl,611 si. go 
~ g= Haith 492,97S 492,97S 

I ::rr11 Housin& wdfare r.nd comlllllllity dcveloprrumt 398,289 196,4SS 223 l,049,620 l,644,S87 
~ ii)c.D .Educalion 29,6SO 29,6SO 

I ~~ C8pila1 Outll!Y1 458,869 414,115 756,671 1,230,049 424,792 3,284,496 
Debt service 

11. ::J(j Principal 892,000 892,000 

l ~o Interest 713,610 713,610 
o..: Bond iSIUlllCC costs 16411 16411 

l~~ Tot.I apadhans 1s~21a14 736 827 801~8 1160S1610 l~,460 21017,123 21,728,532 (;;(/) .EJ:caa (clet'lde9q) of revea- Offr apai4ltllns 84S)72 244,7S7 (701,298) 278,963 (912,164) (2S3,3S6) (497,826) 
~(j Otller ftaachtc IOel'Ull (-) 
en Payment of PREP A debt (857,672) (857,672) 

General obliption bonds 1,765,000 l,76S,OOO 
Transfin In 336,178 336,178 
Transfmout (1,8812 (334a297l (336,178l 

Total otller n.udeg 1Hrra (-) (S21 1494} (l~ll 1,430.703 907~28 

N,. dla1p la tlllld btlllince 323,778 244,757 (701,298) 277,082 S18,.S39 (253,356) 409,502 
Fund belaoce at bqlaolng of year,• mlaled 211021868 p661457} 2 499 8SO 3,149.893 4,1641819 t,1681471 12 719444 
Fllllll bUaac:e at all of yeu s 21426.646 s '1211700l s li7981SS2 $ 314261975 $ 416831358 $ 91s111s _$ 1311281946 

\~~~The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

~ ",yj 
o~b\ id 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) OF GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS TO THE 

STATEMENT OF A.CTIVITIES 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Net change in r1111d balances-total governmental funds: 

Amounts reported for govcrnmeutal activities in the staleml:nt of activities aredimfe:ot bacamc: 

Govemmemal funds~ capital as.se1S outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense: 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less: cumnt year depreciation 

Governmental funds only report the proceeds received in the disposal of assets. lo the 
Statanent of Activities, a gain or loss is rq>e>rted for eacll disposal. Thm, the change in 
net position d.iffcrs from the chaogl: in timd balmce by the cost of the dispmcd mset. 

Revenues in lbe Statement of Activities that do not provide cwrent financial resources BR 

not reported as revcn\lf!s in the funds: 
MWlicipal License Taxes 
Rent 
Office for the Improvement of Public Schools ("OMEP") 
Puerto Rico Department ofTramportation 
CRIM- cWTeDt year property tax settlement 
Cbrisllll8S Bonus reimbursement 
Dooat.ed cap ital assets 
Federal grams • CDBG 
Federal Grams - H.a:zard Mitigmon 
Federal gran1s • Emt1gency Shelter Grant 
Federal granls - P.R. Office of the Ombudsman for the Elderly · Title ill-E 

Rcvcnaes reporlltd in funds whir.Ii are not RpOrtcd es revema ill the Stsmcnt of Aclivitics: 
CRIM-prior )al' property tax settlement 
Christmas Bonm Rcimbunemeat 
Puerto Rico Department of Labor • prior year 
Federal gnmls • CDBG 
Federal grarm. P.R. Office of the Ombudsman for lbe Elderly- Titles m -E-prior year 
Federal grams - P.R. Office of the Ombudsman for the El~ly - Titles m-B-prior year 
Federal grants - Qiild Care - Prior year 

Proceeds from general obligation bonds an: other financing sources in the governmental fiinds 
but an iDc:rease oflong4enn liabilities in tbe Stall:mall Net Position: 

Expeuditures rcpol1l:d in funds which an: 1101: reported as c:xpemcs in the Statemeot of 
Activities: 

Matured bonds principal payments-Debt Service Fund (oet ~) 

Repayment, of long tmn debt is an expenditure in the govcmmmtal funds, but n:duces long­
term liabilities in lhc Statr:n:lent of Net Position: 

Oeoera1 obligation boods and notes 

Other long leJm liabilities 

Some expe05CS reported in the S1a1eml:nt of Activities do oot ~ lhe use of cuneot 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the govcmmental 
funds: 

Judgment md claims 
Cbristmas Bonus 
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREP A) 
Net ar.crual, interest payable 

Cbaqt in ad utets of govenautal activities: 

s 3,284,496 
(1,367,131) 

177,853 
9,748 

45,587 
64,973 

236,593 
110,159 
319.00 

Ul,700 
18,750 
46,570 

7111 

(251,815) 
(174,024) 
(160,461) 
(363,597) 
(ll,742) 
(12,367) 
(53,886) 

931,000 
1,500.329 

(500,000) 
(237,173) 
(857,672) 

{13,590) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 

Gr GoNZAI.EZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Moel'l"lbels at: AlCPA. PA Society ol CPA MIO Anoeiabon ot Clrf1fft«I Ffllud EAarnlt\«s 

s 48',502 

1,.917,365 

(10,582) 

839,363 

(1,027,892) 

(1,765,000) 

(39,000) 

2,431,329 

(1,608,435) 

s l.14"'5! 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

B nsi ness-type 
Activities -
Enterprise 

Fund 
Jardines de 

A2uada Project 
ASSE'IS 
Current assets: 

Cash $ 122,333 
Accounts Receivable 25,076 
Prepaid Insurance 1,019 

Total Current Assets 148,428 

Non-current Assets: 
Restricted deposits: 

Insurance Escrow 6,718 
Tenants Security Deposit 9,329 
Reserve for Replacement 72).16 
Total restricted deposits 88).63 

Property and equipment: 

Land 93,700 
Land improvements 513,685 
Buildings 2,028,847 
Buildings improvements 734,515 
Building equipment - portable 130,710 
Furniture 26,294 
Maintenance equipment 8,167 

Total fixed assets 3,535,918 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,488,250 

Total property and equipment 1,047,668 

Total assets 1~84,359 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

G:;r GoNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
'J Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

.,_ ol' AICIY., PR Sooiely of CPA and -of C..- Fraud E.-a 
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CO:MMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSIDON - PROPRIETARY FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

LIABILI11ES AND NETPOSIDON 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
Mortgage Payable 
Accounts payable trade 
Accrued liabilities: 
Management Agent 
Interest 
Payroll Taxes and witholdings 
Wages 
Tenant security deposits, including interest earned 

Total current liabilities 

Non current liabilities: 
Mortgage Payable 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net in\estment in capital assets 
Restricted for housing and welfare 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

Business-type 
Activities -
Enterprise 

Fund 
Jardines de 

Aguada Project 

41 ,070 
9,144 

1,515 
14,617 

1,733 
7,477 
9,329 

84,885 

2,042,758 
2,127,643 

{l ,036,161) 
88,263 

104,614 
$ (843,284) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Gr G oNZALFZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
"4embtra oC AJCPA PR Soeitty ot CPA and AssodMIOn ol Clttifltd F,IW Eu mine.rs 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUND 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Business-type 
Activities -

Enterprise Fund 
Jardines de Aguada 

Project 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Rent 
Other revenues 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Administrative 
Utilities 
Operating and maintenance 
Taxes and insurance 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating Income 

NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest revenue 
Overage on rental payment 
Interest on mortgage and other charges 

Total non opera.ting :revenues (expenses) 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON 

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET POSITION AT .END OF' YEAR 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Gr GoNzALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Publiv Accountants and Consultants 
Members-or: AICPA, PR Sociitly of CPA and A.s.aoc~tioo of Certified f ,.ud ExamYlet1 

437,618 
393 

438,011 

123,535 
9,612 

94,516 
32,107 
89158 

348,928 

89,083 

8 
(13,006) 
(42,135) 
(55,133) 

33,950 

(877,234) 

(843,284) 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Busines~type 

Activities -
Entemrise Fund 

Jardines de Aguada 
Project 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from tenants and HUD $ 442,369 
Other cash received 393 

442,762 

Administrative (29,176) 
Management fees (32,402) 
Salaries and wages (113,398) 
Utilities (9',612) 
Operating and maintenance (43,698) 
Miscellaneous taxes and insurance (17,061) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 197,415 

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES: 

Adquisition of capital assets (117,228) 
Mortgage principal payments (37,659) 
Interest on mortgage (42,660) 
Overage on rental payment !132006} 

Net cash used in capital and related financial activities 0102553) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on investments 8 
Deposits to and interest earned and retained reserve 
for replacements (21,835) 
Withdrawals from reserve for replacements 68 944 
Net cash provided by investing activities 47 117 

Net increase in cash 33,979 

Cash at beginning of year 88 354 

Cash at end of year $ 122.333 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Gr G oNZALFZ ToRRES & C o., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Mombet'S or: AICPA., PR Sodety of CPA and A~tlon fJ CenMtd Fr...0 Examiners 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUND 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Busin~-type - ·- .:>· 

Activities -
Enterprise Fund 

Jardines de Aguada 
Project 

Operating Income 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Accounts receivable tenants 
Tenant securities deposit 
Insurance escrow 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable trade 
Accrued liabilities: 

Payroll taxes and witholdings 
Wages 

Tenant securities deposit 

Total Adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral ·part of this statement. 

Gr G oNZALFZ To~ & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
,,..-. ol AICPA PR Soaety ol CPAand--ol c..-Fno.d -

89,083 

89,157 

4,477 
102 

14,767 

(2,078) 

279 
1.456 

172 

108,332 

197i415 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Aguada. was founded in 1510. The Municipality is governed by the executive and the legislative 
branch elected for a four year term during the general elections in Puerto Rico. The Mayor is the executive officer 
and the legislative branch consists of sixteen (16) members of the Municipal Legislature. The Municipality engages 
in comprehensive range of servi~ to the community such as: general government administration, public works, 
health, environmental control. education, public security, welrare, housing. community development and culture and 
recreation activities. 

The financial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The GASB periodically 
updates its existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent 
GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. 

I. Financial reporting entity 

The financial reporting entity included in this report consists of the financial statements of the Municipality of 
Aguada (primary government) and organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable. 
In addition, the primary government may detennine, through exercise of management's professional judgment, 
that the inclusion of an organization that does not meet the :financial accountability criteria is necessary in 
order to prevent the reporting entity's financial statements from being misleading. Other entities should be 
evaluated as potential component units if they are closely related to, or financially integrated with, the primary 
government. It is a matter of professional judgment to determine whether the nature and the significance of a 
potential component unit's relation.ship with the primary govemment warrant inclusion in the reporting entity. 
An entity should be considered a component unit if meets any of the following three conditions: 

a. The primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and either: 
• The primary government can impose its will on the entity, or 
• A financial benefit/ burden exist between the primary government and the entity 

b. The entity is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a financial benefit/burden between 
the primary government and the entity. 

c. It would be necesS8l}' to include the entity as a component unit since the primary government's financial 
statements would be misleading without it. 

In addition, "Special criterid' apply when evaluating a legally separate, tax-exempt organi7Jttion as potential 
component unit. Specifically, such entities must be treated as component units if they meet all of the following 
criteria: 

a. The economic resources received or held by the separate organimon are entirely or almost entirely for the 
direct benefit of the primary government. its component units, or its constituents. 

b. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a 
majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization. 

Gr G o NzALEZ T oRRF.S & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
.._,,,Wt of: AICPA., PR Society a( CPA and Auociation of C.nffl.9d Fraud £Q.minera 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

c. The economic resources received or held by an individual organiz.ation that the specific primary 
government, or its component units, is entitled to, or bas ·the ability to otherwise access, are significant to 
the primary government. 

Legally separate, tax-exempt organimtions that do not meet the above special criteria should still be included 
as a component unit if the financial statements of the primary government would be misleading without them. 

There are two methods of presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: (a) blending the 
financial data of the component units' balances and transactions and (b) discrete presentation of the component 
unit's financial data. When a component unit functions as an integral part of the primary government, its data 
is blended with those of the primary government ("blended component units"). That is, the component unit's 
funds are treated just as though they were funds of the primary government with one exception: the general 
fund. Component units should be reported as blended if meets any of the following criteria: 

a. The component unit's governing body is substantively the same as the governing body of the primary 
government and there is either: 
• A financial benefit/ burden exist between the primary government and the entity or 
• Management of the primary government has operational :respoDSlbility for the primary government. 

b. The component unit provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the primary government or otherwise 
exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits the primary government. 

c. The component unit's debt is expected to be paid by the primary government. 

Otherwise, the component unit should be presented as discrete. Those component units does not function as an 
integral part of the primary government and its data is presented discretely (separately) from the data of the 
primary government ("discretely component units''). Legally separate, tax-exempt otga:niz.ations that meet the 
special criteria should be included as discretely component units. 

Based on the above criteria there are no potential component units which should be included as part of the 
financial statements. 

2. Basis or presentation, measurement focus and basis of accounting 

The financial report of the Municipality consists of the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), 
" basic financial statements and required supplementary information other than the MD&A. Following is a 

summary presentation of each, including the measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus 
is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Basis of 
accounting refers to when transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus: 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

This consists of a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities. This 
analysis is similar to analysis the private sector provides in their annual reports. 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRRF.S & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
M_, of: AJCPA. PR Scoe!)' o1 CPA ...0 MIOCial"° ol C.nlflod 1'""4 Euminats 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Basic financial statements 

Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial level. Both levels of 
statements catego:riz.e primary activities as either governmental or business-type. Governmental activities, 
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external usm for goods and 
services. 

Government-wide statements 

The government-wide statements consist of a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities. These 
statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus, which refers to the reporting of 
all of the net position available to the governmental unit for the purpose of providing goods and services to 
the public. The statements are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the 
period earned and expenses recogniz.ed in the period in which the associated liability is incurred. Fiduciary 
activities, if any, whose resources are not available to finance government programs, are excluded from the 
government-wide statements. The effect of inter-fund activities is eliminated. While separate govemment­
wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. the governmental activities column 
incorporates data from governmental funds while business-type activities incorporate data from Jardines de 
Aguada Proj ect, a Municipality's enterprise fund. Separate financial statements are provided for 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

The Statement of Net Position presents all of the reporting entity's non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows, 
liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference reported as net position. The Statement of Activities 
reports revenues and expenses in a format that focus on the net cost of each function of the Municipality. 
Both the gross and net cost of the function, which is otherwise being supported by the general government 
revenues, is compared to the revenues generated directly by the function. This Statement reduces gross 
direct expenses, including depreciation, by related program. revenues, operating and capital grants, and 
contributions. Direct .expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program 
revenues must be directly associated with the function. 

The types of transactions included as program revenues are: charges for services. fees. licenses and permits; 
operating grants which include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants; and 
capital grants which are capital-specific grants. Internally dedicated resources are reported. as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. Property taxes 
(imposed nonexchange transactions) are recogniz.ed as revenues in the year for which they are levied and 
municipal license taxes and sales and use taxes (derived tax revenues) when the underlying exchange has 
occurred and time requirements are met Revenues on both operating and capital grants are recogniud when 
all eligi'bility requjrements (includmg time requirements) imposed by the provider have been met. For 
certain expenditure-driven grants, revenue is recogniz.ed after allowable expenditures are incurred. 

The Municipality reports unearned revenues in the government-wide statements. Unearned revenues arise 
when resources are received before the Municipality has a legal claim to 1hem (such as advances of derived 
tax revenues) or before applicable eligt'bility requirements are met (in case of certain federal expenditure­
driven grants if resources are received before allowable expenditures are incurred). In subsequent periods, 
when the Municipality has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenues is removed from 
die statement of net position and the revenue is recogniz.ed. 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
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COMMONWEALIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGND'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Fund Statements 

The financial ·transactions of the Municipality are recorded in individual funds, each of which are considered 
an independent fiscal entity. Each fund is accounted for, by providing a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts. Funds are segregated according to their intended purpose which helps management in 
demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. Funds are classified and 
summarized as govemmenial and proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported in the fund financial statements and in separate columns in the 
financial section of the basic financial statements. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are 
aggregated and reported as non major funds. 

Governmental Funds account for the general governmental activities of the Municipality. The governmental 
fund statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances with one column for the general fund, one for each major fund and one column combining all non­
major governmental funds. Major funds are determined based on a minimum criterion. that is, a percentage 
of the assets and deferred outflows; liabilities and deferred inflows; revenues or expenditures or based on the 
Municipality's official criteria if the fund is particularly impcrtant to financial statement users (for 
Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) Fund) The Municipality reports the following 
major governmental funds: 

General Fund: This is the operating fund of the Municipality and is used to account for and report all 
financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund. 

Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG): CDBG fund is used to account for and report 
revenue sources for the development of viable urban communities by providing decent housing, a suitable 
living environment and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate 
income. CDBG funds are received through the Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ("OCAM"), a 
Commonwealth's governmental agency. 

Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions Fund: This fund is used to account for and report revenue 
sources from grants provided by the Commonwealth's Legislature for specific purposes which include, 
among others, acquisition. development and improvements of capital assets, public works, welfilre and other 
community development projects. 

Debt Senis:e Fund: This fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. This fund accounts for the resources of two 
individual funds including the "CAE Fund" (sinking fund which accounts for the 2% of property taxes 
collected by the CRIM), "and the "Municipal Redemption FUnd" (2% of the .5% from sales and use taxes 
are deposited in GDB to finance loans to Municipalities). 

Bonds and Notes Is.mance Fund: the Bonds and Notes Issuance Fund is used to account for and report 
financial resources from bond proceeds and notes issuance which are restricted for acquisition or 
construction of capital assets. This fund reports transactions of individual funds of Bonds and Notes issued 
through GOB. 

Gr G oNZALF.Z ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

The governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and ·the modified accrual basis of accowiting. Under this method of accounting, revenues 
are recognized when they are suscepnole to accrual (i.e. both measurable and available). Revenues are 
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period For this purpose, the Municipality considers revenues to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days ofthe end of the current fiscal period 

Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, recogni7.ed as revenues in the year for which they 
are levied; municipal license taxes and sales and use taxes, recognized when the widerlying exchange has 
occurred and time requirements are met; and interest. In applying the suscepttole to accrual concept to 
intergovernmental revenues, revenues are recognized when all eligil>ility requirements (including time 
requirements) imposed by the provider have been met and revenue becomes available. There are, however, 
essentially two types of these revenues. In lhe first case, on expenditure-driven grants, monies must be 
expended on the specific project or purpose (eligil>ility requirement), before any amounts are paid to the 
Municipality. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as expenditures are incurred to the extent available. In the 
other cases, monies are virtually unrestricted and are generally revocable only for fililure to comply with 
prescribed compliance requirements. In these cases revenues are recognized as the time of receipt or earlier 
if ·the susceptible to accrual criteria is met. Licenses and permits, charges for services, rent, fines and 
miscellaneous revenues are generally recorded as revenues when received or are recognized earlier if the 
susceptible to accrual criteria is met. 

The Municipality reports unearned revenues in the governmental funds statements. Unearned revenues arise 
when resources are received before the Municipality has a legal claim to them (such as advances of derived 
tax revenues) or before applicable eligibility requirements are met (in case of certain federal e:xpenditure­
driven grants if resouroes are received before allowable expenditures are incurred). In subsequent periods, 
when the Municipality has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenues is removed from 
the balance sheet and the revenue is recognized. 

Expenditures are generally recogniz.ed when ·the related liability is incurred as under accrual basis of 
accounting. Certain exceptions to this fundamental concept include the following: (1) payments of principal 
and interest on general long-term debt, which are recorded as expenditures when due, except for principal 
and interest due on July 1 (in this case amounts are recorded as liabilities and expenditures on June 30 since 
amounts have been accumulated or transferred to the debt service fund before July 1 payments are made) 
and, (2) vested compensated absences, claims and judgments and special tennination benefits which are 
recorded as expenditures only to the extent that they are expected to be liquidated with expendable financial 
resources (in the government-wide statements ·the expense and related accrual liability for long-term pottions 
of debt must be included). 

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of 
accounting than the government-wide statements, ·reconciliation is necessary to explain the adjustments 
needed to transform the fund, financial statements into the government-wide statements. This reconciliation 
is part of the financial statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGND'ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

The proprietary fund financial statements are accounted for using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as the business·type activities in the govemment·wide financial 
statements. Under ·this method of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned. independently when are 
collected. and expenses are recorded when incmred, independently when are paid. Proprietary funds 
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non.operating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally resuh from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are charges to customers for services. 
Operating expenses for the funds include the cost of operations and maintenance and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

The proprietary fund statements include a Statement of Net Position. a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Net Position (with one for each major enterprise fund and one column combining all non· 
major enterprise funds) and a Statement of Cash Flows. 

The Municipality's proprietary funds consist of an enterprise fund Enterprise funds are used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent 
is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 
Major Enterprise funds arc determined based on a minimum criterion, that is, a percentage of the assets, 
liabilities, revenues or expenses. The Municipality reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Jardines de Aguada Project Fund: This fund is used to account for the activities of JOJ'dines de Aguada 
Project (''the Projecf'). which is a 70·unit dwelling unit's project located in Aguada, Puerto Rico and 
operating property management concerns similar to companies in the private sector. The Project operates 
under Section 515 of USDA-Rural Development (USDA-RD) and is regulated by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and USDA-RD with respect to rental charges and operating 
methods. The Project finances its operating costs from rental income from qualified tenants and a Section 8 
Housing Assistance Payments agreement with HUD. Under this agreement, HUD pays to the Project the 
difference between the contract rent and ·the portion of rent payable from the qualified. tenants: The Project is 
not legally separated from the Municipality. which holds legal title to the Project's assets and is responsible 
for its obligations. Its day-to--Oay activities are carried-out by a management agent unrelated to the 
Municipality. 

Notes to Fiopcial Statements 

The notes to financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's understanding of the basic 
financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Required supplementmy information consists of the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund as 
required by GASB. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

3. DeposiJs and investments 

Cash consist of cash on hand and demand deposits; cash equivalents consist of short-term investments with 
original matmities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposits 
with original maturity of more than three months are considered time deposits as required by c:wrent standards. 
The Municipality follows the practice of pooling cash of all funds except for certain Commonwealth's grants, 
restricted funds generally held by outside custodians and fed.era! grants. Available pooled cash balance beyond 
immediate needs is invested in certificates of deposits. Cash and cash equivalents related to Commonwealth 
and Federal grants (including Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions) are restricted since their use is limited 
by applicable agreements or required by law. 

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico authorize the Municipality to invest only in 
obligatioos of the Commonwealth. obligations of the United States of America, certificates of deposits, 
commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which 
are managed by the Governmental Development Bank for Puerto Rico ("GOB"). 

4. Restricted a.ssets 

Restricted asset'! are liquid assets which have third-party limitations on their use. Cash and cash equivalents 
related to Commonwealth and Federal grants (including Commonwealth Legislature Resolutions) are restricted 
since their use is limited by applicable agreements or required by law. 

Restricted cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund consists of the undisbursed balance of property and 
sales tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Pu.erto Rico which are restricted for the repa}'lllent of 
the Municipality's general and special obligation bonds and notes as established by law. Restricted cash with 
fiscal agent of the other governmental funds represent the undisblll'Sed proceeds of certain bonds, loans or 
grants which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the GOB or a federal government agency. 

S. Receivables and due from goununental entJdes 

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are detennined upon past 
collection experience and current economic conditions. Amounts due from federal government represent 
amounts owed to the Municipality for the reimbursement of expenditures incmred pursuant to federally funded 
programs. Amounts reported in the debt service fund represent property and sales tax revenues of current fiscal 
year collected by the CRIM (property tax) and the Pu.erto Rico Department of Treasury (sales tax) on the 
subsequent fiscal year. 

6. Interfand recdvables and payables 

Activities among funds that are representative of lending/borrowing ammgements outstanding at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred oo as either "due from/to other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e .• the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances 
among funds are reported as "due from/to other funds". 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

7. Inventories 

The Municipality purchases gasoline, oil and other expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost of 
those purchases is recorded as expenditure when incurred in the appropriate fund but the year-end inventory is 
not recorded in the Statement of Net Assets, as management believes is not significant. 

8. Capital assets 

Capital assets reported in the governmental activities in the Statements of Net Position include property, plant, 
equipment and infrastructure, (e.g., roads. bridges, sidewallcs. and similar items). The Mupicipality defines 
capital assets (except for infrastructure assets) as assets that have an individual cost of$100 or more and have 
a useful life of one or more years. Infrastructure assets are capitalized based on a percentage of the estimated 
useful life. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitaliz.ed. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as 
projects are constructed. 

Capital assets are capitaliz.ed at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available. 
Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. All 
capital assets, other than land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Descriotioa 

Buildings and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
V chicles, machinery and equipment 

15-50 
20-40 
5-1!1 

In accordance with current accounting standards capital assets are reviewed for impairment. Impairment occurs 
when there is a significant decline in asset service utility due to the occw:rence of a prominent event or change 
in circumstances affecting the asset. Ctment standards provide guidance for accounting and reporting for 
impairment and for insurance recoveries. 

9. DefeTTed oMlflowsllnjlows of raollrces 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element. deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not he recogniz,ed as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one item. which arises only under a modified 
accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item. unavailable 
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable 
revenue from two sources: una:vailable intergovernmental .revenues and other general .revenues. These amounts 
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

I 0. Long-term obNgations 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations, which are reported as liabilities in the governmental and 
business-type activities columns in the Statement of Net Position, consist of general and special obligation 
bonds, mortgages, liabilities for compensated absences, claims and judgments, and long-term liabilities to 
other governmental entities. Related bond issuance costs, whenever rise, are reported ~ current outflows of 
resources in the Statement of Activities, as required by current standards. Governmental fund types recognize 
bond issuance costs as expenditures during the current period. Those issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures in the appropriate fund. 

The Municipality's employees accumulate vacation, sick leave and compensatory time based on continuous 
service. Compensated absences are recorded as a liability if (l)are earned on the b~is of services already 
performed by employees, (2) it is probable that will be paid (in the form of paid time o~ cash payments at 
termination or retirement, or some other means) and (3) are not contingent on a specific event (such as illness). 
The compensated absences are ae<:umulated on the basis of 2Yi days per month of vacation and 1 Yi days per 
month of sick pay and compensatory time up to a maximum of 60 days of vacations and 90 days of sick leave. 
Upon separation from employment the accumulated vacations are liquidated up to the maximum number of 
days. Accumulated sick leave, which is accrued based on all vesting amounts for which payinent is probable, is 
liquidated to employees with 10 years or more service up to lhe maximum number of days. 

The accrual of compensated absences includes estimated payments that are related to payroll. The entire 
compensated absence liability is reported 0n the government-wide financial statements. For governmental fund 
financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally 
expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. The non-current portion of the liability is 
not reported. 

Pumlant to Law No. 152 of August 20, 1996 effective July I, -1997 the Municipality is required to pay any 
excess of vacations and sick leave accumulated over 90 days as of December 31 of eac.b year. Payments should 
be made on or before March 31 of the following year. 

12. Claims 11114 )fldgmena 

The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, which is due on demand, such as from 
adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund when they mature (generally, when payment is 
due). The accompanying government-wide stateme.nts include an amount estimated as a contingent liability or 
liabilities as :incurred. 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
....-.ot:AICPfo..PRSoci«yaf CPA_As_af~--

37 



-

COMMONWEALIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

13. Net position 

In the government-wide statements, assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources equal net position, and should be displayed in three components: net investment in capital 
assets, restricted, and unrestricted, as follows: 

Net investment in capital Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding 
asset3: balances of bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 

construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources that are attnoutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets or related debt also should be included in this component of net position. 
The portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent debt 
proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead, the 
portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position 
component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

Restricted net position: The restricted romponent of net position consists of restricted assets (subject to 
restrictions beyond the Municipality's control) reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the 
asset results from a resource ·flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the · 
liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported Restrictions are externally 
imposed (by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other 
governments) or imposed by the law through constitutional provision s or enabling 
legislation 

Unrestricted net position: Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of 
net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position. U~ted 
net posi1iou is often designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be 
available for general operations. These types of constraints are internal and. management 

,, can remove or modify them. 

14. Net positionfllJw assumption 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular pwpose from both restricted (restricted bond or 
grant proceeds) and unrestricted reso\D'CeS. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net 
position and unrestricted - net position in the government-wide financial statements, a flow assumption must 
be made about the order in which the resomces are considered to be applied. It is the government's policy to 
consider restricted - net position to ha:ve been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- Continued 

15. Fund balances 

The GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions ("GASB No. 
54") establishes accounting and reporting standards for all governments that report governmental funds. It also 
establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined classifications and clarifies 
definitions for governmental fund types. These classifications comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the 
extent to which the Municipality is bound to observe constraints upon the use of the resources reported. The 
classifications are as follows: 

Nonspendable: 

Restricted: 

Committed: 

Assigned: 

Unassigned: 

Amounts that cannot be spent bccau9e are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or 
cootractually required to be maintained in1act 

Amounts constrained by external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and 
regulations of other governments), imposed by law through constitutional provisions or by 
enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the Municipalily to assess, levy, 
charge or otherwise mandate payment or resources (from external resource providers) and 
includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the 
specific purposes stipulared in the legislation. Legally enforceabilily means that the 
Municipality can be compelled by an external party such as citizens, public interest 
groups, or the judiciary to use resources created by enabling legislation only for the 
purposes specified by the legislation. 

Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed 
through formal action (ordinance or resolution) by consent of the government's highest 
level of decision-making authority, which in the case of the Municipality is the Mayor and 
the Municipal Legislature. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other 
purposes unless the Mayor and the Municipal Legislature removes or changes the 
specified use by t.alcing the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to 
commit those amounts. Formal action to commits fund balance to a specific plllpOSC 
should occur prior to the end of the fiscal year, but the amount, if any, which will be 
subject to the constraint, may be detcrmioed in the subsequent period. 

Amounts that are CODSlrained by the Municipality's intent to be used for specific purposes, 
but are neither restricted nor committed In distilK:tioo to committed ~ the 
authority for making an assignment is not required to be the govemmeat's highest level of 
decision-making authority, (both the Mayor and ·the Municipal Legislature). It is the 
Municipality's policy that intent can be expressed by the Mayor, the Finance Director (the 
official to which the Mayor has al.so delegated ·the authorily to assign amounts) or by any 
other official or body to which the Mayor delegates. Furthermore, the nature of th.e actions 
necessary to remove or modify an assignment is not as prescriptive as it is with committed 
fund balances. With the exception of the general fund, this is the residual fund balance of 
the classification of all govemmcntnl funds with positive fund balances. Action taJcen to 
assign fund balance may be made after year-end. 

Is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all spendable amounts not 
restricted, committed or assigned. The general fund is the only fund thal reports a positive 
unassigned fund balance amount. For all other governmental funds the unassigned 
clwification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting for the overspending for 
specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

I 6. Fund balance flow assumpdons 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources (the total of committed, assigned. and unassigned. fund balance). In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted. committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial 
statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using 
any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund 
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund 
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

17. Interfand transactions . 
The Municipality reports certain transactions as transfers, which are legally required transfers that are reported 
when incurred as ''Transfm-in" by the redpient fund and as "Transfers-out" by the disbursing fund. 

18. Risk financing 

The Puerto Rfoo Department of Treasury (PRDn acts as an agent, obtaining and determining the coverage for 
the municipalities of Puerto Rico. The coverage for the Municipality of Aguada consists of professional, public 
responsibility, property and theft, auto and fidelity bond coverage. 

Insurance policies costs are allocated by PRDT among all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Payment of the 
Municipality's insurance premiums is monthly ded~cted from advances of property tax and amounts of 
municipal equalization fund send to the Municipality by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM). 
Workers compensation insurance is also deducted from the monthly advances by the CRJM. Settled cases have 
not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three years. 

19. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the basic financial statements in ae<:ordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosme of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from 'those estimates. 

20. Redlusijlc.ations 

Various reclassifications have been made in the accompanying basic financial statements which affect the 
comparability with the basic financial statements issued for previous fiscal years. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-Continued 

21. Future adoptio11 of acco-,,,,tlng pro1UJ11ncemmts 

The GASB has issued the following statements, which the Municipality has not yet adopted: 

a. GASB Statement No. 66 "Technical Corrections-2012-an amendmenJ ofGASB Statements No. JO and 
No. 62". The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2014). 

b. GASB Stalmtent No. 67 "Financial Reporting/or Pension Plans-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
25". The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2013 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2014). 

c. GASB StatemDrt No. 68 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 27". The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2014 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2015). 

d GA$B Statement No. 69 "Government Combinations and D'isposals of Government Operations". The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for government combinations and disposals of government 
operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013, and should be 
applied on a prospective basis (fiscal year ended June 30, 2015). 

e. GASB Stgtemmt No. 70 "Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Nonexchange Financial Guarantees". 
The provisions of Statement 70 are effective for financial statements for reporting beginning after June 15, 
2013 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2015). 

f. GASB Statanat No. 71 "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the MeOSW'ement 
Date". The provisions of this Statement should be applied simultaneously with the provisions of 
Statement 68 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2015). 

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's financial statements bas not yet been determined 

NOTE B- DEPOSITS 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to 
it. The Municipality maintains cash deposits in commercial, governmental banks and a credit union located in Puerto 
Jtico. Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial banks and credit unions 
must be fully collateralix.ed for the amount deposited in excess of insurance provided by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or the "Corporaci6n para la Supervisi6n y Seguro de Cooperativas de Puerto Rico" 
("COSSEC"), respectively. All securities pledged as collateral by the Municipality are held by the Secretary of 
Treasury of Puerto Rico in the Municipality's name. 

At year-end the Municipality's bank balance of deposits in commercial banks amounting to S4,705,719 and deposits 
in a credit union amounting to $2,281,879 were covered by the FDIC, COSSEC or by c-0llateral held by the 
Secretary of Treasury of Puerto Rico in the Municipality's name. Deposits in governmental banks (all of which are 
uninsured and uncollateralized), are exposed to custodial credit risk. At year-end the Municipality's hank balance in 
governmental.banks amounts to $10,180,681. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE C- DUE· FROM (TO) GOVERNMENTAL EN'ITl'IES 

1. Amo11nts due from govunlnenJal mtitles as of Jun~ 30, 2013 follows: 

Major f'und -General fund: 
P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center 

(CRIM} property truces and 
intergovernmental subsidy(general fund) 

P.R. Department of Education 
P.R. Department of Treasury - Christmas 

bonus reimbursement 
Other 

Major fund - Debt service fund: 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) 

- property truces 
P.R. Department of Treasury - sales and use 

truces-Municipal Redemption Fund 
Major fund - CDBG fund: 
Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs 

- CDBG 
Other governmental funds: 
P.R. Department of Labor-Law No. 52 
P .R Department of Transportation 
P.R. Department of Family - Child Care 

Program 
P.R. Department of Family - Child and Adult 

Care Food Program 
P.R. Department of Family - Emergency 

Solutions Grant Program 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development - Section 8 Housing Voucher 
Program 

P.R Office of Ombudsman Administration 
(OAP) 

P.R. Emergency Management Agency -
Haz.a:rd Mitigation 

P .R Department of Education - Schools 
Improvements 

s 

s 

Commonwealth 
Government 

975,955 

236,593 

110,159 
178 

17,444 

84,145 

145,500 
64,973 

45,587 
1,680,534 
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Federal 
Government 

244,844 

51,190 

4,032 

46,569 

2,060 

7,111 

18,750 

374,556 
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COMMONWEALIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE C- DUE FR.OM (IO) GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES - Continued 

Certain amounts are recorded as deferred inflow of resources in the governmental funds statements since they are 
not available as required by current standards. See related note H. 

2. ·Amoll1tl:S due to g~mllU!lltal. mtitJes as of J"M 30, 2013 follows: 

Major fund - General fund: 
P.R. Water and Sewer Authority 
P.R. General Services Administration 

NOTED- INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

1. D"e from/to other .fllnds 

Commonwealth 
Government 

388,923 
526 

s 389,449 

Amounts due/from to other fimds in the general fund represent advances to other funds to finance payroll, 
payroll taxes and other expenditures, as follows: 

Receivable Fund Payable Funds Amouot 
General Fund Major Funds: 

CDBG S 114,1 91 

Total: 

2. Trans/en in (ow) 

Qtber Governmental Funds: 
Child Care and Development Block 

Grant 
P.R. Department of Transportation -

State Roads Improvements 
P.R. Department of Family - Emergency 

Solutions Grant Program 
P.R. Department of Labor- Law No. 52 
P.R. Office of Ombudsman 

Administration (OAP) 
$ 

42,621 

12,920 

51 ,578 
142,040 

24,783 
388,133 

Transfers among individual funds were made for operational purposes. Transfers include interest earned in the debt 
service and bonds and notes issuance ftmds transferred to the general fund. 

Gr G oNZALEZ T oRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
Membett of; AJCPA, PR Sodety of CPA In.cl Af,sociation ot C.rtifted Fraud E•• mineB 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE E- FUND BALANCE 

1. Fund bal'1nce dassljlcallons 

The governmental fund balance classifications and amounts at June 30, 2013 are shown in the following table: 

~ 
Community 

Development Commonwealth Otber 
General Block Grant Lqlalatlve Debt Bonds and GovernmentaJ l:&>C') Fund Pro1ram Reaolut.1001 Service Notea hauance Fund1 Total I e.o 

g, ~z 
Restricted: 

§ ~~ General public works and sanjtation s $ s $ s s 16,770 s 16,770 
Jg. F!l Sports, culture 111d recreation 486 486 
, ~ 

Housing. welfare and community development 294,693 294.,693 ~ i b-1 Debt service 3,426,975 3,426,97S 

~ o ~ Capital ouUays 1,798,552 4,679,247 474,757 6,952,S56 
15 Gcnerel government and other purposes 4,111 369,87S 3731986 

f !~ 117981SS2 314261975 4168313S8 111561581 ll,065,466 
Commited: 

~ ~ 0 General government and other pwpoees 7011280 7011280 

I ~. 701~80 7011280 
0 .. Assigned: l iii '""d 
~en General public wo.rks and aanilation 100,123 100,123 

i ~(j Public safety 3,551 3,551 
Sports, culture and recreation 39,18S 39,185 
Housin& ~ md community development 34,073 34,073 
Education 3,850 3,850 
Capital outlays 516,901 516,901 
General government and other purposes 36 780 36780 

7341463 734463 
Unassigned 9901903 ~ 12117002 ~24114662 6271737 

$ 21416.~ s (121,700) s 11798~52 s 314261975 s 41683~58 s 9151115 I u 1t28z!4' 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE E- FUND BALANCE - Continued 

2. Fund bal.lllfce dejicits 

Certain special funds included in the fund statements disclosed fund balance deficits as follows~ 

Funds 
Major Funds: 

Community Development Block Grant Program 
Other Governmental Funds: 

P.R. Office of Ombudsman Administration (OAP) 
Public Schools Improvements 
Huard Mitigation Plan 
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 
Roads Improvements 
Other 

Fund balance -
unassigned amount 

s 

s 

121,700 

24,972 
24,200 
18,750 
50,909 

122,603 
32 

The deficits result from the accrual of expenditures without accruing intergovernmental revenues for 
reimbursement of expenditures. As required by current standards, the Municipality recorded intergovernmental 
revenues for reimbursement (expenditure-driven) grants on fund statements when aJJ applicable eligibility 
requirements have been met and the resources are available. 

NOTE F- CAPITAL ASSETS 

1. Capital assets and depreciation activity of the governmental activities follows: 

Balance Balance 
July l, '.2012, as June30, 

restated Increases Decreases 1013 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land s 4,261,866 s 65,319 s $ 4,327,185 
Construction in progress 3,680,839 11773,479 31682,991 l,7711327 

Total capital assets not being depreciated: 7,942,705 1.838,798 3,682,991 6,0CJ81512 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and building improvements 36,364,671 2,414,433 38,779,104 
Infrastructure 10,546,559 2,550,311 13,096,870 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 10,979,200 180,664 778,157 10,381,707 

Total capital assets being depreciated 57,890,430 51145,408 778,157 62,2571681 

Less ucumu.lated depreciation for: 
Buildings and building improvements 13,048,930 716,861 13,765,791 
Infrastructure 4,360,304 236,732 4,597,036 
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 9,668,139 4131538 767,575 9,314!102 

Total accumulated depreciation 27,077,373 1,367,131 767,575 27,676,929 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 30,813,057 31n s,z11 10,582 34,580,752 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 38,755,762 s 5~17,075 $ 3,693,573 $ 40,679,264 

Gr G oNZALEZ ToRRES & C o., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
-. ~ AICPA. ~ Sodoty ol CPA Md._._ ol ~ f<aucl E-. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE F- CAPITAL ASSETS- Continued 

1. 

Depreciation expense of the governmental activities w~ charged to functions/programs of the Municipality 
as follows: 

General government 
Public works and sanitation 
Public safety 
Culture and recreation 
Welfare and community development 

$ 80,075 
377,965 
146,238 
669,672 
93 181 

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities s 1,367,131 

Capital assets and depreciation activity of the business-type activities follows: 

Balance 
Jo!l'.12 2012 Increases 

Capilal assets, not being depreciated: 
Land s 93,70-0 $ 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land improvements 513,685 
Buildings and building improvements 2,661,759 
Machinery and equipment 1492543 

Total capital assets being depreciated 3,324,987 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements 388,280 
Buildings and building improvements 1,877,073 
V chicles, machinery and equipment 1331739 

Total accumulated depredation 2,399,092 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 925,895 

Business-type activities capital assets, net s 1,019,595 s 

Gr G oNZALEZ ToRRF.S & C o., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
..-o1:NCPA..PR~olCPA_--o1~Ft11UC1~ 

101,603 
152627 

117.lJO 

12,842 
70,559 
5 756 

89,157 

28,073 

28z073 

Balance 
June 3021013 

$ 93,700 

513,685 
2,763,362 

165,170 
3,442,217 

401,122 
1,947,632 

1392495 
2,488,249 

953,968 

s 1,047'"8 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT 

J. Sllllt1"ary of long- term debt activity of gOVO'fUflelltlll and basiness-type llCIJvilles: 

Governmental activities: 

Balaoceat 
J•ly l, 2012, u Balance at 

restaecl Increua Decreua Jane 30, 2013 
General, Special 

Obligation Bonds and 
NQtes s 13,996,000 s l,765,000 s 931,000 s 14,830,000 

Note payable to CRIM-
financing of delinquent 
accounts 175,432 s.m 166,660 

Compensmd absences 2,873,279 315,285 2,557,994 
Christroas Bonus 244,945 237,173 244,945 237,173 
Payable to CRIM-

property tax advlSICCS 
current 56..387 56,387 

Judgments and claims 6,000 500,000 6,000 S00,000 
Payable to EPA 22,SOO 7,500 15,000 
Payable to PREPA 928,395 905.234 8571672 975Y.>7 

$ 1~ s 3(IO?A07 s 2,427,561 $ 19,ZSl,784 

Business-tvoe activities: 

Baluceat Baluceat 
J!!!l'.1, 1012 lncrea1a Decreasa Jane 301 2013 

Note Payable, USDA 
Rural No.I s 1,406,098 s $ 30,534 s 1,375,564 

Note Payable, USDA 
RuralNo.2 310,091 S,169 304,922 

Note P&yablc., USDA 
Rora1No3 405,298 1956 403,342 

s l Ul,A8'7 s s 37,feJ $ l,1&1z:!a! 

2. GovmunenJal Activilla - GenenJ 11114 special obllglllion bonds and ttDta 

Due within one 
l'.ear 

s 884,000 

8,772 
290,905 
237,173 

S00,000 
15,000 

674,212 
s 2,610,!162 

DllC witllia one 
Itar 

s 33,233 

S,752 

2,085 
s "1~78 

The Municipality's outstandlllg general and special obligation bonds and notes of its governmental activities at June 
30, 2013 amount to $14,830,000. All these bonds are serviced by the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto 
Rico (GOB) maturing at various dates. A$ required by law, the Commonwealth Government is obligated to 
collect a percent of property taxes to be deposited in a sinking fund ("CAE Sinking Fund") for payment of 
principal and interest on bonds and notes. In addition. .2% of the .5% municipal sales and use tax collected by 
the P.R. Department of Treasmy is deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to finance loans to 
Municipalities subject to restrictions imposed by law. Debt service funds bas been established for the bonds and 
notes at GD.B with the proceeds of those. property and sales and use taxes, whereby sufficient funds must be set 
aside in order to cover the projected debt service requirement, before any new bonds are issued. 

Principal and interest payments of outstanding general and special obligation bonds are paid through the CAB 
Sinking Fund except for principal and interest payments of special obligation bonds and notes of $746,000, 
$820,000, $958,000, $61,000, $470,000, $600,000, Sl,490,000 and $200,000 which are made through the 
Municipal Redemption Fund. 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRREs & C o., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
~ o' AICPA PR~ ol Cf'A .r'ld AHoco.ation oC Cri°IH f-a.A E. .. .,....,,..., 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G-LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

A detail of the governmental activities - general and special obligation bonds and notes as of June 30, 2013 
follows: 

1994 public improvement bonds of $2,030,000 due in annual installments of 
$30,000 to $185,000 through July 1, 2018; bearing interest at rates ranging from 
6.11% to 8.21% (7.71% at June 30, 2013) 

1995 public improvement bonds of $350,000 due in annual installments of $8,000 to 
$26,000 through January l, 2018; bearing interest at rates of 4.50% 

1997 general obligation bonds of$2,040,000 due in annual installments of $30,000 
to $185,000 through July l , 202 1; bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.87% to 
6.71% (6.11% at June 30, 2013) 

1998 general obligation bonds of $910,000 due in annual in.stillments ofS 15,000 to 
$85,000 through July 1, 2020; bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.87% to 
6.71% (6.11% at June 30, 2013) 

2003 general obligation bonds of$845,000 due in annual installments of$15,000 to 
$70,000 through July l , 2027; ; bearing interest at rates ranging from 4.17% to 
5.31 % (4.36% at June 30, 2013) 

2004 general obligation notes of$635,000 due in annual installments ofSl0,000 to 
$50,000 through July l , 2028; bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.36% to 
5.31% (4.36% at June 30, 2013) 

2006 general obligation bonds of $600,000 due in annual. installments of$15,000 to 
$40,000 through January l, 2031; bearing interest at rates of 4.50% 

2006 general obligation bonds of $445,000 due m'annual installments of $5,000 to 
$35,000 through July 1, 2030; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
6.62% (1.53% at June 30, 2013) 

2007 general obligation bonds of $1,245,000 due in annual installments of $20,000 
to $105,000 through July I, 2031; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
7.00o/o (1.53% at June 30, 2013) 

2008 general obligation notes of $790,000 due in annual installments of $90,000 to 
$140,000 through July 1, 2014; bearing interest at rares ranging from 1.53% to 
7.00% (1.43% at June 30, 2013) 

2010 general obligation bonds of $370,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$35,000 through July I, 2034; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00o/o to 
7.50% (6.00o/o at June 30, 2013) 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
M•mbera of AICPA PR Socie-w of CPA and Associal!Ofl ot c.rttfleel Fraud Examiners 

Outstanding 
Amount 

s 895,000 

114,00Q 

1,.215,000 

505,000 

655,000 

505,000 

490,000 

380,000 

1,100,000 

270,000 

355,000 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

2011 general obligation bonds of $345,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$35,000 through July 1, 2036; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00o/o at June 30, 2013) 

2011 general obligation bonds of$980,000 due in annual installments of $25,000 to 
$90,000 through July 1, 2031 ; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2011 general obligation bonds of $245,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$20,000 through July 1, 2031; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2011 general obligation bonds of$830,000 due in annual installments ofSI0,000 to 
$70,000 through July 1, 2036; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00°/o at June 30, 2013) 

2012 general obligation bonds of $255,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$30,000 through July l , 2031; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2012 general obligation bonds of $345,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$35,000 through July I , 2036; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7 .50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2012 general obligation bonds ofS700,000 due in annual installments ofS15,000 to 
$65,000 through July 1, 2031; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2012 general obligation bonds of $75,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 
through July I, 2027; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 7.50% 
(6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2008 special obligation notes of $746,000 due in annual installmems of $29,000 to 
$79,000 through July 1, 2023; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
7.50% (l.53% at June 30, 2013) 

2008 special obligation notes of$820,000 due in annual installments of $10,000 to 
$75,000 through July 1, 2029; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
7,50% (1.53% at June 30, 2013) 

2008 special obligation notes of $958,000 due in annual installments of $91 ,000 to 
$152,000 through July 1, 2016; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
7.50% (1.53% at June 30, 2013) 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRREs & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
MtltTlb9tl ot: AtCPA.. PR Society of CPA and Alsoclatlof, of C.nlf'itd Fraud Examiners 

Outstanding 
Amount 

340,000 

955,000 

240,000 

820,000 

250,000 

340,000 

685,000 

75,000 

618,000 

750,000 

548,000 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

2008 special obligation notes of $61,000 due in annual installments of $7,000 to 
$11,000 through July 1, 2011; bearing interest at rates ranging from 1.53% to 
7.50% (1.53% at June 30, 2013) 

2011 special obligation notes of$470,000 due in annual installments of$55,000 to 
$90,000 through July 1, 2018; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00°/o to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2011 special obligation bonds of$600,000 due in annual installments oUI0,000 to 
$50,000 through July 1, 2036; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7 .50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

2012 special obligation bonds of $1 ,490,000 due in annual installments of $20,000 
to $130,000 through July 1,2037; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00°/o at June 30, 2013) 

2012 special obligation bonds of $200,000 due in annual installments of $5,000 to 
$20,000 through July 1, 2027; bearing interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to 
7.50% (6.00% at June 30, 2013) 

s 

Outstanding 
Amount 

30,000 

415,000 

590,000 

1,490,000 

200,000 
14,830,000 

The annual requirement to amortize general and special obligation bonds and notes as of June 30, 2013 follows: 

June30, 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 
2034-2038 

Totals 

Princi~al Interest 
$ 884,000 $ 850,391 

964,000 912,584 
884,000 850,445 
944,000 784,109 
852,000 724,626 

3,538,000 2,817,685 
2,959,000 1,814,233 
2,540,000 790,824 

1,265!000 169,875 

s 14,830,000 $ 9,714,772 

Gr G oNZALEZ T oRREs & C o., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
-.o1· A1CA>.. PR~ ol CPA _..._,,_ .. ~ ,,,_ __.. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

J. Go~mmental Activities - Otho long-term liabilities 

Note payable to CRIM (Financing of delinquent accounts}- On 
March 19, 2002 the Municipality entered into a $468,783 
financing agreement with the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center ("CRIM") to finance delinquent property tax accounts 
sold to private investors, under the provision of Law No. 146 of 
October 11 , 200 I . The agreement was in the fonn of a 
nonrevolving line of credit bearing interest of 6.5% for the first 5 
years and variable for the next 25 years at 125 points over 
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and is due on 
Deoember 1, 2032. As descnbed in Law No. 146, interest 
payments for the first 5 years will be financed through .4S°/o of 
the net increase of subsidy provided by the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico's general fund Also, during the first 5 years any 
collection from those delinquent aCGOunts will be credited to the 
Joan principal. After the 5 year period, on July l , 2007 the loan 
ourstanding balance was restructured through a 2.504% note 
payable of S219,315 due on July 1, 2032. Debt service 
requirements in future years are as follows: 

June JO, Principal Interest 

2014 s 8,772 $ 4,118 
2015 8,772 3,899 
2016 8,772 3,679 
2017 8,772 3,459 
2018 8,772 3,240 

2019-2023 43,858 12,794 
2024-2028 43,858 7,413 
2029-2032 35,084 1,976 

Totals $ 166,660 $ 40,578 

Gr G oNZALFZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
~ ot: A1CPA. PR Sodety of CAA ore! AaOOCIO- of c.Mlod Froud !.-,. 

Outstanding 
Amount 

166,660 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT- Continued 

Compensated absences - includes accrued vacations, sick leave 
benefits and other benefits with similar characteristics such as 
compensatory time; represents the Municipality's commitment 
to fuod such costs from future operations. The amount is paid 
with unrestricted funds 

Christmas Bonus - represents the accrued portion corresponding 
to fiscal year 2013 of the Christmas bonus to be paid in 
December 2013. 

Judgment and claims - rep~ot the final settlement of a legal 
case paid subsequent to June 30, 2013. The awarded amount will 
be paid through the issuance of special obligation note approved 
by the GDB. The special obligation bond will be repaid through 
the Municipal Redemption Fund. See related Note S. 

Payable to EPA - represents the remaining amount of a $30,000 
civil penalty imposed on September 23, 2011 by the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA,.) for the discharge of 
pollutants consisting of fill material into United States waters 
without authoriz.ation. It is due on May 2014. 

Payable to PREP A-As required by Act No. 83 of May 2, 1941 the 
Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ("PREPA") should 
annually pay to the Municipalities of Puerto Rico a contribution 
in lieu of tax ("CELI") based on certain requirements as specified 
by the mentioned Act. The amount of CELI obligation is used by 
the Municipalities to finance the annual electric utility expense 
payment to PREPA For fiscal year 2011-2012 the Municipality's 
annual energy charges amounts to $2,337,272 but the CELI 
obligation amowrted to $1,432,038. The excess amount of 
$905,234 was recorded as a payable and a receivable for the 
same amount and will be amortized over a three-year period. As 
of June 30, 2013 the outstanding amount of $915,951 includes 
me unamortiz.ed balances of $603,489 and $372,468 from fiscal 
years 2012 and 2011 respectively and is recognized by the 
Municipe.lity as a receivable and a liability to PREP A. Debt 
service requirements in future years are as follows: 

June 30 Prillcipal 

2014 
2015 
Totals 

$ 

$ 

674,212 
301,745 

Gr GoNzALFZ ToRRE.S & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
MernD&t1 of AICPA JJA 8otfe\y o4' CPA and A1soc1a\IOI'! ot Ceftiflitd F,1..0 l••~ 

Outstanding 
Amount 

2,557,994 

237,173 

500,000 

lS,000 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE G- LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 

4. Business-type Activities - Mortgages Payable 

Mortgages payable of the business-type activities consists of permanent residences loans provided by USDA­
Rural Development. The land and buil~ of Jardines de Aguada Project secure the mortgages notes, 
descnbed as follows: 

Note payable to USDA - Rural (1): consists of a 8.50% mortgage 
note, payable in monthly installments of $12,407 of which 
$7,594 is subsidiz.ed by USDA-RD, including interest until 
2031, collateralized with land and building. 

Note payable to USDA - Rural (2): consists of a 10.75% 
mortgage note, payable in monthly installments of $3,188, of 
which $2, 178 is subsidized by USDA-RD, including interest 
until 2031 , collateralized with land and building. 

Note payable to USDA - Rural (3): consists of a 6.375% 
mortgage note, payable in monthly installments of $2,311, of 
which $1 ,4 15 is subsidized by USDA-RD, including interest 
until 2055, collateralized with land and building. 

Debt service requirements in future years are as follows: 

June JO, Principal Interest 

2014 $ 41 ,070 $ 173,802 
2015 44,794 170,078 
2016 48,860 166,011 
2017 53,300 161,572 
2018 58,148 156,722 

2019-2023 380,657 693,694 
2024-2028 589,975 484,364 
2029-2033 545,190 186,059 
2034-2038 42,389 96,299 
2039-2043 58,253 80,434 
2044-2048 80,054 58,633 
2049-2053 110,014 28,673 

2054 311124 1;];_57 . 
Totals s lz08318l8 s 2,457~98 

G:r G oNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
"l Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

Mombe<> ol: AICP~ PR Society of CP" end .t.uodation of Ce,.tlt<I FfN<l EM_, 

Outstanding 
Amount 

$ 1,375,564 

304,922 

403,.342 
s 2,083,828 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE H- DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

As required by current standards, revenues and other govemmen1al fund financial resources should be reGOgnized in 
the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available. When an asset is recorded in 
governmental fund's financial statements but ·the revenue is not available, the Municipality should report a deferred 
inflow of resources until such time as the revenue becomes available. A detail of these balances follows: 

Commonwealth 
Government Federal 

h•ds Gr.a ts Others 
Major fund - General fund: 

P.R. Electric Power Authority (PREPA) $ 975,956 $ $ 
Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRlM)-

property taxes and intergovernmental 
subsidy(general fund) 236,593 

P.R. Department of Treasury - Christmas bonus 
reimbursement 110,159 

Unavailable Municipal facilities rent and license 
taxes receivable 187,601 

M!ior rund - ~DBG fund: 
Office of Commissioner of Municipal Affairs -

CDBG 121,700 
Oll:!er aov~rnmental fund1: 
P.R Department of Education - Public Schools 

Maintenance 45,587 
P .R Department of Transportation - Public Roads 

Maintenance 64,974 
P.R Governor's Office {GAR)- Hazard Mitigation 18,750 
P.R Department of Family - Emergency Solutions 

Grant Program 46,570 
P.R. Office of Ombudsman Administration (OAP) 7,111 

s 1,433,269 $ 194,131 s 187,601 

NOTE I-PROPERTY TAXES 

The Municipal Revenue Collection Cent.er (CRIM) of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is responsible for the 
assessment, collection and distnbution of real and personal property taxes. The tax on personal property is self­
assessed by the taxpayer. The assessment is made on a return, which must be filed with the CRIM by May 15 of 
each year and is based on the current value at the dat.e of the assessment. Real property is assessed by the CRIM. 
The tax is general assessed on January 1 on all taxable property located within the Municipality and is based on the 
current value existing in the year 1957. For personal property the tax is due with the return filed on or before May 
15. Taxes on real property may be paid on two equal installments, July 1st and January 1st. Total tax rates in force 
as of June 30, 2013 are 6.83% fur personal property and 8.83% for real property. The distnbution of these rates 
follows: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE I-PROPERTY TAXES - Continued 

Description 
Basic property tax rate, which is appropriated for general 

pwposes and accounted in the Municjpality's general fund: 
Percent that belongs to the Commonwealth's deht service 

fund.: 
Percent that belongs to the Municipality's debt service fund: 
Total tax rate: 
Discount granted by law to the taxpayers but .reimbursed to the 

Municipality by the P.R. Treasmy Department: 
Total percent to be paid by taxpayers: 

Personal 
Property 

4.00% 

1.03% 
2.00oA. 
7.03% 

(.20%) 
6.83% 

Real 
Property 

6.00°/o 

1.03% 
2.00% 
9.03% 

(.20%) 
8.83% 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from property taxes on the first $15,000 of the 
assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury assumes payment of the basic 
tax to the Municipality, except for residential units assessed at less than $3,500 on which a complete exemption is 
granted Revenue related to exempt property is recorded in the General Fund. The Municipality grants a complete 
exemption :from personal property taxes up to an assessment value of $50,000 to retailers with annual net sales of 
less than $150,000. 

The CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on an estimate of special governmental subsidies and the 
property taxes to. be levied and which are collected in subsequent periods. This distribution includes advances of 
property tax and amounts of municipal equalization fund ftom the Commonwealth government The CRIM is 
required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the 
amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. The CRIM prepares a 
preliminary settlement not later than three months after fiscal year-end and. a final settlement not later than six 
months after fiscal year-end. If actual collections exceed the advances a receivable from CRIM is recorded. 
However. if advances exceed actual collections. a payable to CR.JM is recorded. A receivable of $236,593 from the 
preliminary settlement of fiscal 2012-2013 was recorded as deferred revenue since is not available are required by 
current standards. 

NOTE J - MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES 

Municipal License taxes are assessed annually by the Municipality to all organUations or entities subject to the tax 
doing business in the Municipality's location except for entities totally or partially exempt pursuant to certain 
Commonwealth's statutes. TJlls tax is based generally on volume ofbusiness or gross sales as shown in a tax ·return 
that should be submitted on or before April 15. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the tax rates were as follows: 

Financial business - 1.500Ai of gross revenues 
Other organizations - .50% of gross revenues 

The tax is due in two equal installments on July l and January 1 of each fiscal year. Tax revenue is recogniz.ed at 
that moment by the Municipality. A discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. 
Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to ·the next fiscal year in the amount of Sl,094,307 
is recorded as unearned revenues. 
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COMMONWEALm·oF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE K- SALES AND USE TAXES 

On July 4, 2006 the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 117 ("Act 11 T') which amends the Puerto Rico 
Internal Revenue Code of 1994 to provide, among other things, for a sale and use tax of 5.5% to be imposed by the 
Commonwealth Government. Act 117 also authomes each municipal government to impose a municipal sale and 
use tax of 1.5%. This municipal sales and use tax has in general the same tax base and limitations (except for 
unprocessed foods) as those provided by the Commonwealth's sales and use tax. The Municipal Legislature 
approved the imposition of the municipal sales and use tax, effective on November 15, 2006. 

On July 29, 2007 the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 80 ("Act 80") which amends Act No. 117 of 
July 4, 2006 to impose to all the Municipalities of Puerto Rico a uniform municipal sales and use tax of 1.5%. 
Effective August 1, 2007 1% of-the 1.5% is collected by the Municipalities and the remaining .5% of the 1.5% is 
collected by the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury (PRDT). 

The amount collected by the PRDT, (.5% of the 1.5%) is deposited in accoWlts or special funds in the Governmental 
Development Bank of Puerto Rico ("GOB"), subject to restrictions imposed and distnbuted as follows: 

a .2% of the .5% will be deposited in a "Municipal Development Fund" to be distributed among all the 
municipalities in accordance with a formula created by the Act, 

b .. 2% of the .5% will be deposited in a "Municipal Redemption FlDld" to finance loans to Municipalities and, · 

c. .1 % of the .5% will be deposited in a ''Municipal Improvement Fund" to finance capital improvement 
projects; these funds will be distnbuted based on legislation from the Commonwealth's Legislature 

The Municipal Legislature approved a municipal ordinance to conform to dispositions of Act 80. Effective January 
1, 2011 the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico adopted a new Intemal Revenue Code ("2011 PR Code"). Subtitle D 
(Sections 4010 to 4070) of the 2011 PR Code incorporates the dispositions applicable to the sales and use tax. As 
stated by Section 4050 the Municipalities may use the sales and use tax proceeds deposited in the Municipal 
Development Fund to finance solid waste, recycling, capital projects, hea1tb. and public safety programs as well as 
any other activity that promotes sound public administration. 

Individuals, organizations and entities subject to collect the. municii>al sales and use tax must file a tax return to the 
PRDT. The tax is due the 10th day of each month based on tax collected in the preceding month. The Municipality 
recorded as revenue $1,298,579 in the general fund th.at corresponds to the 1% imposition and $786,863 in the debt 
service fund corresponding to the Municipal Redemption Fund and Mun.icipal Development Fund that was fully 
transferred to the Municipal Redemption Fund to increase their credit margin. A total $104,795 sales and use tax 
receivable represents the tax collected on June by individuals, organizations and entities but reported and paid to the 
Municipality on or before July 10; $84,145 represents the amount of the Municipal Redemption Fund collected on 
June by individuals, organi7ations and entities but paid by the PRDT subsequent to June 30. 

On June 30, 2013 the Commonwealth approved Act No. 40 which among other things, reduces the municipal sales 
and use tax from 1.5% t-0 I% and increa.sing the Commonwealth sales and use tax from 5.5% to 6% effective 
December 1, 2013. This Act was subsequently amended to change this effective date from December 1, 2013 to 
February I, 2014. In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2013 the Commonwealth approved Act No. 1'8 and 19 of 
January 24, 2014 for the restructuring and creation of financing structures from sales and use tax sources to 
guarantee and pay municipal long term debt issuances. See related Note S. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNIClP ALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 . 

NOTE L - INTERGOVERNMENTAL AND.FEES, FINES AND CHARGES FOR SERVICES~ 
GENERAL FUND 

1. Intergovemmenlalrevenues in the General Fund are comprised of the following: 

Amount of municipal subsidies and equalization fund sent by CRIM 
Reimbursement from Commonwealth Government of Christmas Bonus 

expenditure 

Amount 
$ 5,669,592 

195,033 
s 5,864,625 

2. Fees, fines and charges for services revenues reported in the general fund are comprised of the following: 

Compensation in lieu of tax from the Puerto Rico 
Electric Power Authority (PREP A) 

P.R. Department of Education - transportation services 
to students 

Construction excise tax 
Rental income 
Fines 
Recycling 
Licenses and permits 
Others 

NOTE M- RETIREMENT PLAN 

1. P/411 descrlptWn 

Amount 

$ 3,275,821 

1,054,086 
450,198 
136,233 
23,741 
18,744 
4,625 
6,297 

s 4,969,745 

As of June 30, 2013 regular employees of the Municipality contribute to a cost-sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit retirement plan administered by the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of 
Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS). ERS covers all regular full-time public employees worldng for the 
central government, the municipalities of Puerto Rico and certain public corporations not having their own 
retirement systems. The system provides retirement pensions, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits 
depend upon age at retirement and number of years of credited service. Disability retirement benefits are 
available to members of occupational and non-0eeupational disabilities. Benefits vest after ten years of plan 
participation. 

The system operate under A.ct 447, approved on May 15, 1951 effective on January 1, 1952 and Act 1 of 
February 16, 1990 for employees that entered as participants of the Plan starting April 1, 1990 and ending 
December 31, 1999. Retirement benefits are determined by the application of stipulated benefit ratios to the 
member's average compensation. Average compensation is computed based on the high.est 36 months of 
compensation recogniz.ed by ERS. The annuity, for which a plan member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of 
$200 per month and a maximum of 75% of the average compensation. ERS issues a publicly financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information of the Plan. which may be obtained 
from the ERS. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLAN - continued 

Act No. 305 of September 24, 1999 amended Act. No. 447 o/1951 and Act I of February 16, 1990to establish a 
new pension program (System 2000). The new pension program became effective on January 1, 2000. 
Employees participating in the current system as of December 31, 1999 may elect either to stay in the defined 
benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining the government on or after January 1, 2000 will 
only be allowed to become members of the new program. 

' 
System 2000 is a hybrid defined contn'bution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. There will be a pool of 
pension assets, which will be invested by the System, together with those of the current defined benefit plan. 
Benefits at retirement age will not be guaranteed by the State government md will be subjected to the total 
accumulated balance of the savings account. The annuity will be based on a formula, which assumes that each 
year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% of the employee's salary up to a maximum of 
100/o) will he invested in an account which will either: (l) earn a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant 
Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) eam a rate equal to 75% of the return of the System's investment portfolio (net 
of management fees), or (3) eam a combination of both alternatives. If the savings accounts balance is $10,000 
or less at time of retirement, the balance will be distn'buted by the System to the participant as a lump sum. 
Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of defined contn'bution plans showing their 
accrued balances. Disability pensions have not been granted under th.e new program. The employer 
contributions (11.275% of the employee's salary) will be used to fund the cwrent plan. Under System 2000 the . 
retirement age is reduced from 65 years to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 
l, 1990 . 

. 1. Funding policy 

The Act 447, as amended, is the au1hority under which obligations to contn'bute to the Plan by the Plan 
members, employers and other oontn'buting entities are established or may be amended. Plan members are 
required to contn'bute 5.775% of gross salary up to $6,600 plus 8.275% of gross salaiy in excess of $6,600 
except for the Mayor or employee under a supplementation plan. which contn'butes 8.275% of gross salary. 
As of June 30, 2012, the ERS bas an unfunded. actuarial accrued liability of approximately $26.4 billion. In the 
opinion of management if measures are not implemented to deal with this situation, the ERS's net assets will be 
exhausted by the fiscal year 2015. In order to address this issue, among other measures, on July 6, 
201 l(effective July 1, 2011) the Commonwealth Legislature approved Act No. 116 increasing the employers' 
contributions rate from 9.275% to 10.275% of employee compensation for fiscal year 2012, an additional 1% 
annually for each of the next four years, and 1.25% annually for each of the five years thereafter, reaching an 
aggregate contn'bution rate of 20.525% effective. July 1, 2020. The pwpose of this Act is to provide cash flow 
and strengtb the System to adequately cover administrative expenses and payment of benefits. 

The Municipality is required to contn'bute 11275% of gross salary for fiscal year 2013. As stated in the Act. 
percent increases applicable to municipalities for fiscal years 2011-2012, 2012-2013 y 2013-2014 would be 
financed through the Commonwealth's budget approved by the Commonwealth's Legislature. 

The Municipality's actual contribution for the current fiscal year, which is equal to the required contribution, is 
$317 ,693 for Law No. 44 7 and $264, 136 for System 2000. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE N -POSTEMPWYMENT BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits descnl>ed in Note 0, the Municipality is required to cover annually the 3% 
increase in the retirement plan of its retired employees. as required by Commonwealth's Jaws. Also, the 
Municipality is required to finance costs related to the application of certain "Special Laws,, issued by the 
Commonwealth Government. Those Special Laws granted increases in pensions and other benefits to retired 
employees of the Municipality such as medicines bonus, Christmas bonus and death benefits. For the fiscal year 
2013, costs related to these post-employment benefits amounted to $139,499. These benefits are recorded as 
expenditures in the general fund. 

NOTE 0-COMMITMENTS 

J. Operating le.ases 

The Municipality leases office equipment under operating lease agreements, which generally have terms of one 
year or less and are automatically renewed for the same terms. Rental expenses amounted to $52,732. 
Management believes that the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable 
operating leases with terms exceeding one year is not significant. 

2. ConstTuction 

As· of June 30, 2013 ·the Municipality has commitments of $3,032,711 for design, construction, improvements 
or renovation of certain municipal facilities. 

3. Encumbrances 

The Municipality has encumbrances outstanding which represent the estimated amount of expenditures 
required to complete contracts, purchase orders and other commitments in process of completion at fiscal year­
end. Outstanding encumbrances as of June 30, 2013 in ·the general fund represent unassigned amounts that are 
encumbered and are classified by management as assigned fund balance. Purpose classification follows: 

Purpose 
General public works and sanitation 
Public safety 
Sports, culture and recreation 
Housing and welfare 
Education 
General government and other purposes 

General Fund­
usigned fund 

balaace 
$ 63,00S 

3,551 
39,185 
2,414 
3,850 

34,766 
s 146.771 

Fund balance of major .and other governmental funds (special revenue, capital project and debt service funds) 
is classified as restricted, some or all of which may be encumbered. Encumbrances of restricted fund balance 
are not reported separately from this classification because the encumbrance does not further restrict the 
purpose for which the resources may be used. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE P -RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCE AND NET POSmON 

The following table disclosed the net change in fund balances and net position at beginning of year as previously reported in the financial statements. The beginning balances 
have been restated as follows: 

Description 
Fund balance I net po1ldon, at 
bqtnnlng of year, H previously 
reported 
Comctioo of cam: 
Net (undentatemcnt) overstatement of 
liabilities 
Understatement of deferred inflows 
Overstatement of due from other funds 
Enors in classification of ccrtlficatcs of 
deposits 
(Overstatement) understatement of ca1h 
Special funds of general fund 
erroneously classified as capital projects 
or special revenue funds at olhcr 
governmental fund3 
Net overstatement of due to other funds 
Overstatement of unearned revenues 
Overstatement of due from federal 
government 
Understatement of property tax, md 
sales and use taxes receivables 
Un<lerstatcrnent ofCDBG revenues 
Net overstatement of other Jong term 
liabilities 
Overstatement of accrued interest 
payable 
Net understatement of capital assets 
Overstalcment o~ INSEC revenues 
Fund balance I net position, at cad of 
year, u restated 

s 

$ 

Geaenl 
Fund 

(351,803) 
(2Sl,81S) 

(32,484) 

100,000 
(39,486) 

468,649 

2,102,868 

Community 
Developmeat 
BtockGraat 

Program 

s (199,824) 

9,Sl3 

7,203 
264,133 

(447,482) 

$ (366,457) 

Fund Balance 
Commonwealth 

Lqlllaltve 
Jlaoladou 

hnd 

s 

$ 

2,151,119 

(14,161) 

263,384 
(492) 

s 

$ 

Debt 
Senice 
Fund 

3,IM7,880 

102,013 

3,149,!93 

60 

$ 

$ 

Loana 
A•d 

Bondi 

4,245,.196 

(84,689) 

4,112 

Other 
Govenimentat 

Fundl 

(340,63S) 
(249,996) 

(363,38.4) 
(6,628) 

(468,649) 
2S,281 

$ 1,168,171 

Net Position 

Government 
Wide 

Stltemeou 

$ 35,203,305 

(781,775) 

(42,494) 

264,133 

(447,482) 

102,013 
363,597 

S3S,600 

695,899 
146,680 
(11,540) 

$ 36,027.93' 
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COMMONWEALIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE Q - CONTINGENCIES 

1. Federal and Coltl1ft0nwultlt Grtlllls 

Projects financed by the Federal and Commonwealth Grants are subject to audits by grantors and other 
governmental agencies in order to determine that the expenditures comply with the conditions of such grants. It 
is lhe Municipality's opinion that no additional material unrecorded liabilities will arise from audits previously 
performed or to perform. 

2. Litigations 

The Municipality is, at present. a defendant in a number of legal matters that arise in the ordinary comse of the 
Municipality's activities. There are cases whereby the Municipality is a defendant or codefendant that will be 
covered by insurance, certain cases whereby the legal counsel has not determined an outcome and other cases 
that would not be covered by insurance. However, it is the opinion of the Municipality and the legal counsel 
that based on their experience, such actions and the potential liabilities will not impair the MunicipaUty's 
financial position. 

NOTER-GENERALFUND-FUNDBALANCECOMPOSITION 

The general fund is composed of Fund 01, which is the Municipality's operational fund, and other special funds, 
which represent fund balance of the general fund committed or assigned for specific purposes recorded in the 
Municipality's accounting system as special funds. The following discloses the dislnDution of the net change in fund 
balance of the general fund as reported in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes 
in fund balances: 

Fund balance at beginning of year, as 
restated 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at end of year 

NOTE .S- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Pension System and Soles and Uu Ta Refonm 

$ 

s 

FundOl 

1,548,351 

(410,677) 

1,137,674 

Special Funds in 
General Fund 

$ 

$ 

554,517 

734,455 

1~ 

Total General 
Fund 

$ 2,102,868 

323,778 

$ 2,426,646 

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is facing a financial crisis due to limited liquidity, general fund deficit, a 
sizeable amount of debt, an underfunded government pension system and an economy recession since 2006. As a 
result of these matters, credit ratings agencies have been consistently downgrading the Commonwealth's and certain 
public corporation's general o'bligation bonds ratinp. In order to address these matters the Commonwealth began to 
make legislation to reform its governmental pension system, provide liquidity to the Governmental Development 
Bank of Puerto Rico ("GDB"), its fiscal agent, and strength sinking funds to assess financial markets. The 
Commonwealth estimates that these corrective actions, along others to be implemented, will have a positive impact 
on the Commonwealth itsel( GDB, the municipalities and its citizens: 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTES- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - Continued 

1. Pension System Reform 

In order to address its unfunded liability and rescue the System from insolvency, on April 4, 2013 the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico enacted Act No. 3 of 2013, representing a comprehensive refonn of the ERS. 
Act No. 3 became effective on July 1, 2013 and amends the provisions of the different benefits structures under 
the ERS, including. but not limited to, the following: 

a. Moves all participants (employees) under the defined benefit pension plans (Act 447 and Act 1) and the 
defined contnoution plan (System 2000) to a new hybrid plan ("New Plan"). 

b. For active participants of the contn"butory defined benefit programs under Act No. 447 of 1951 and Act 
No. I of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 2013 will be frozen, and thereafter, all 
future benefits will accrue under the New Plan. Participants will receive a pension at retirement age 
equivalent to what they have accrued under Act 447 and Act 1 up to June 30, 2013, and a supplemental 
annuity corresponding to contnbutions made after July 1, 2013. 

c. Participants under System 2000 will no longer receive a lump-sum payment upon retirement, but rather a 
lifetime annuity calculated at retirement based on a factor that will incorporate the individual's life 
expectancy and a rate of return. 

d. New participants under the New Plan will receive a lifetime annuity based on the accumulated balance of 
their individual accounts (employees' contnbutions plus a return on investment) 

e. Eliminates the possibility of accruing a merit pension (payable once the participant has achieved 30 years 
of creditable service) after June 30, 2013. 

f. Increases employee contnbutioos from 821S% to a minimum of 10.000°/o. 

g. After July 1, 2013 all employers must contribute 12.275% of employee contnbution with an additional 1% 
annually up to June 30, 2016; after July l, 2016 an additional 125% annually for each of the five years 
thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rate of20.525% effective July I , 2020. These contnoutions 
will be used to increase the System's iwets, reduce the actuarial deficit and enable the System to comply 
with future obligations. 

h. Retirement age will be modified as follows: 

1) Act447 regular employees: from age 58 to 61, 

2) Act 447 high risk employees (state and municipal police, firefighters and custody officials): from 
age SO to 55 years, 

3) Act 305 (Syst.em 2000) regular employees: from age 60 to 65; high risk employees remains the 
same (55 y~). 

Act 1 employees will remain the same (65 years for regular employees and SS for high risk employees). 
For new employees under the New Plan will retire after 67 years (retirement age will be 67 for regular 
employees and 58 for high risk employees). 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTES - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - Continued 

i. Modifies Special Law benefits as follows: 

1) Reduction in Christmas bonus from $600 to S200 (current retirees), 

2) Elimination of summer bonus of$100 (current retirees), 

3) No change in medical plan contribution of up to $1,200 and medicine bonus of $100 (current 
retirees), 

4) Eliminates Special Law benefits to future retirees.. 

Employers will contnlmte $2,000 per retiree and future retiree (originally under Act 447 and Act l); the 
System will benefit from the savings generated between this employer contribution and the Special Law 
benefits paid out to retirees. 

j. Given these changes to Special Laws, the minimum monthly pension for current retirees was increased 
from $400 to $500. 

k. Disability benefits will be eliminated and substituted for a mandatory disability insurance policy. 

1. Survivor benefits will be modified. 

In addition to the previously scheduled measures, the ERS reform plan also assumes an estimated $140 million 
incremental contnlmtion from the general fund (1.4% of general fund expenses for fiscal year 2014) to be 
included in the Commonwealth's proposed budget for the fiscal year 2014 and thereafter. The Commonwealth 
projects that the combined impact of these measures will allow the retirement system to increase the liquidity 
and solvency and meet the revised future obligations. 

2. Sala and llSe lllJU!S-.Act No. 18and19of20U 

In order to address the fiscal and credit crisis of lhe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the GDB liquidity and the 
difficult fiscal situation of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, on January 24, 2014 lhe Commonwealth approved 
Act No. 18 and 19. Those Act's provides for the restructuring and creation of financing structures from sales 
and use tax sources to guarantee and pay municipal long term debt issuances. As a result of this legislation the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico may improve its credit capacity along with maintairung sufficient resources for 
operations. 

a. Act No. 18 of January 24, l014 

The purpose of this Act is to crute a special fund c:alled "Municipal Administration Fund" ("FAM") under 
custody of the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico ("GDB") that permits the Municipalities to 
guarantee and pay long· term debt and provide funds for its general operations. In addition. this Act 
improves the financing capacity of the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation ("COFJNA"). a 
Commonwealth fund administered by GDB and the Puerto Rko. Secretary of T~. The Act includes 
provisions for municipalities that do not want to be covered by the Act Special rules apply for those 
municipalities. The Act is effective on February 1. 2014. 
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NOTES-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - Continued 

The 6% corresponding to the Commonwealth's sales and use tax will be deposited in COFINA. From these 
funds dming a transitory period from February I, 2014 to June 30, 2014 the Commonwealth will deposit 
$43,440,184 in the FAM to be distnl>uted to the Municipalities~ follows: 

• .2% will be deposited in a Municipal Development Fund to be distributed to the municipalities, 

• .2% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to guarantee and repay the 
municipalities long term debt and, 

• . I% will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement 
projects; these funds will be distnl>uted based on legislation from the Commonwealth's 
Legislature. 

After July I, 2014 the 6% corresponding to the Commonwealrh's sales and use tax will be deposited in 
CO FINA. From these funds the Commonwealth will deposit .5% in the FAM. Distribution to 
municipalities will depend on whether the municipalities signed an agreement to be covered or not covered 
by the Act's provisions. The Municipality of Aguada signed the agreement to be covered. 

For municipalities covered by the agreement the .5% will be distn'buted as follows: 

• .2% will be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund to be distributed to the 
municipalities, 

• .2% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to then be deposited in the 
municipalities general fund (the municipalities has the option to maintain funds in the 
Municipal Redemption Fund or to transfer funds from the Municipal Development Fund to 
increase its debt margin and issue loans to be obtained from financial institutions), 

• .1 % will be deposited in a Municipal Improvement Fund to finance capital improvement 
projects; these funds will be distnl>uted based on Jegislation from the Commonwealth's 
Legislature. 

· For municipalities not covered by 1the agreement the .5% will be distributed as follows: 

• .2% will be deposited in the Municipal Development Fund. Section 4 of the Act requires 
amounts deposited in the Municipal Development Fund of municipalities not covered by the 
Act to be redistributed to the municipalities covered by the Act, 

• 2% will be deposited in a Municipal Redemption Fund to guarantee and repay long term debt 
through any financial institution ( each semester the municipalities may transfer to their general 
fund the funds in excess of debt service requirements), 

• .1 % will be deposited in a Municipal lmpro¥ement Fund to finance capital improvement 
projects; these funds will be distributed based on legislation ftom the Commonwealth's 
Legislature . 
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b. Act No. 19 of January 24, 2014 

The purpose of this Act is to create the "Municipal Finance Corporation" ("COFIN'') a. public corporation 
and a component unit of the Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico ("GDB") which may issue, 
pay or refinance long-term debt of municipalities. Principal and interest of these bonds and loans will be 
guaranteed with ·the municipal sales and use ·tax(~%). The Act includes provisions for municipalities that 
do not want to be covered by the Act. Special rules apply for those municipalities. The Act is effective on 
February 1, 2014. 

After July I, 2014 the 1% corresponding to the municipalities' sales and use ·tax will be deposited in 
COFIN. From these funds COFIN will deposit to the COFIN's sinking fund the greater of: .3% of the 1% 
municipal sales and use tax or an Annual Rental Fee ("RFAj. The RFA for fiscal year 2014-2015 will be 
$65,541,281 and ·thereafter will be 1.5% of the RFA of the preceding fiscal period. The excess of the 
required. deposit to th~ COFIN's sinking fup.d (.7% of the 1% of the municipal sales and use tax) wili be 
transferred to the general fund of municipalities covered by the agreement to the Municipal Redemption 
Fund as decided by the municipality. Before the transfer of the . 7% to the municipalities covered by the 
Acct, COFIN will transfer the 1 % municipal sales and use tax to the municipalities not covered by the Act. 
These municipalities cannot obtain loans guaranteed by COFIN's sinking fund. 

If at any moment ·the required deposits to the CO FIN' s sinking fund were not sufficient to pay the principal 
and interest of any outstanding obligation, the deficiency will be covered by appropriations of the 
Commonwealth's genera] fund budget 

As stated above ·the purpose of Act 18 and 19of2014 is to provide a financial structure to guarantee and pay 
Jong term debt to the municipalities while maintaining adequate cash flows for its operations, as well as provide 
liquidity to the GDB. 

Notwithstanding the above corrective actions, on February 4, 2014 Standard & Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P") 
lowered its rating on the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's general obligation (GO) debt to BB+ from BBB- and 
the Commonwealth's appropriation secured debt and Employee Retirement System (ERS) debt to BB. In 
addition, S&P downgraded the GDB to BB, and the rating remains on CreditWatch with negative implications. 
S&P have not taken a rating action on sales tax-secured debt of COFINA, but have retained their negative 
outlook on their CO FINA ratings reflecting S&P's view of the economic outlook and that COFINA sales tax is 

· not subject to the prior diversion of revenue for general obligation debt service payments. The downgrades 
follow S&P's evaluation of liquidity for the Commonwealth, including what they believe is a reduced capacity 
to access liquidity from GDB. S&P also believe that the Commonwealth's access to liquidity and to the market 
either through GDB or other means will remain constrained in the medium term. As S&P, the rating is not 
lower due to the progress the current administration bas made in reducing operating deficits and recent success 
with reform of the public employee and teacher pension systems. They view those reforms as significant which 
could contribute to a sustainable path to fiscal stability. 

Gr G oNZALEZ ToRREs & Co., PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 
-o' AiO'A. PR 5-olCf'lt._....,....- cd c.....tiod fra,,d ~ 

65 



-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 
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In addition. on February 7, 2014 Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's") has downgraded the general obligation 
(GO) rating of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the Pension funding bonds and GDB senior notes to Ba2 from 
Baa3. Other ratings that are capped by or linked to the Commonwealth's GO rating were also downgraded two 
notches, with the exception of the Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority (PRASA) Revenue Bonds, which 
were downgraded to Ba2 from Bal. At the same time, Moody's downgraded the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing 
Corporation's (COFINA's) senior-lien bonds to Baal from A2 and its junior-lien bonds to Baa2 from A3. The 
outlooks for ratings on the GO and ·the related bonds, as well as the COFINA bonds, are negative. Downgrade is 
based among other Commonwealth's problems in years of deficit financing, pension underfunding, budgetary 
imbalance ·and seven years of economic recession. As a result, Commonwealth's debt load and fixed costs are high, 
its liquidity is narrow. and its market access has become constrained. Moody's recogniz.es major actions taken to 
stabiliz.e Commonwealth finances, including significant reform to main pension system, and tax increases to reduce 
budget deficit 

Fwtbermore, on February 11, 2014 Fitch Ratings Fitch Ratings has downgraded the ratings, among other 
instrumentalities, for the Commonwealth general obligation (GO) bonds and ERS pension funding bonds from BB 
from BBB-. The current action does not affect the ratings that Fitch assigns to bonds issued by COFINA, since those 
bonds are secured by the Commonwealth's sales and use tax and insulated from the Commonwealth's general credit 
strain. Fitch reported that recent downgrades have triggered new liquiditY requirements and lowered expectations for 
the market available for the Commonwealth's debt going forward, though there have been no significant negative 
developments regarding the Commonwealth's finances or economy since November 2013. In addition. the report 
recogniz.es that the Commonwealth's management has responded quickly and decisively to challenges that have 
arisen in recent years and the current administration has made significant progress in addressing longstanding credit 
issues. 

These dov.-ngrades may have a. significant impact in the economic environment of Puerto Rico and the 
Commonwealth Government, its instrumentalities and the municipalities in critical areas such as access to markets 
and liquidity for the current fiscal year and thereafter. It is the opinion of the Commonwealth's and Municipality of 
Aguada's management that the corrective actions taken and to be taken in current and fiscal periods thereafter will 
lower the impact ofthis decision and cause a positive tum.around on the Commonwealth's and the Municipality's 
finances. 

Fiscal Reorg1111ivltion Process 

The Municipal Legislature approved Ordinance No. 53 Series 2012-2013 as amended by Ordinance No. 4 Series 
2013-2014 to establish, effective on July l , 2013 a fiscal and administrative reorganiz.ati.on process to review the 
Municipality's organizational structure, administrative operations and processes to identify ways to improve 
efficiency and productivity. The process was implemented in order to address the general economic conditions, the 
fiscal condition of the Municipality and the reduction of funds and awards from the federal government 

As part of1his process, Ordinance 53 as amended implemented expense reduction measures on payroll expenses, 
which is the most significant component of ·the Municipality's expense base. A salary reduction plan was 
implemented in order to prevent a fund balance deficit and achieve budgetary balance in the general fund as. follows: 

a. Reduction ofS600 of the monthly salary of the Mayor, 

b. Reduction of $150 of the monthly salary of the Mayor's Executive Assistant and the Federal Programs 
and Housing Department Directors, 
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c. Reduction of SlOO of the monthly salary of other administrative department directors and trusted 
employees of the executive and legislative branches and, 

d. Reduction of one day on a by-weekly period or a half day on a weekly period to the remaining employees 
paid through general fund resources. Employees whose salaries are paid through federal awards as well as 
police, emergency management personnel, school bus drivers and the homeless services coordinator are 
not covered by the salary reduction plan. 

The Ordinance stated that the salary reduction plan is temporary until the Finance Director certifies that the plan bas 
generated sufficient recurrent resources to cover the projected general fund's budgetary shortfall 

Debt Issuance 

On July 3, 2013 the Governmental Development Bank of P.R. ("GDB") approved for the issuance of a $505,000 
special obligation note for the payment of a legal claim, due 7 years after loan disbursement date. The note will bear 
interest at l .SOOAi over prime rate (with a minimum of 6%) payable semiannually in January 1 and July l of each 
year. Principal and interest will be repaid from sales tax revenues deposited in the Municipal Redemption Fund. As 
of June 30, 2013 the $500,000 was recorded as a judgment and claims liability in the statement of net position -
governmental activities. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Variance with 
Budgeted 1mount3 Actual Amouam Final Budget 

Original Final Q!udgeta!l Baslal Positive {Negative} 
Revenues 

Property taxes s 3,197,151 $ 3,197,151 $ 3,197,ISl s 

~ 
Municipal license taxes 1,531,593 1,531,593 1,453,446 (78,147) 
Intergovernmental 7,016,047 4,925,606 S,079,407 153,801 

I ~~ 
Fees, tines and charges for services 2,096,059 4,387,952 4,198,582 (189,370) 
Interest 233,000 233,000 346,870 113,870 

~ Cii· z Other 190,826 1901826 1621274 {281552} 
~ Cl. ~ Total revenues 14,264,676 14,466,128 14,437,730 (28,398) 
J '"O • 

i a. ~ E11:pendlturet j 5 
!l 6> b1 General government 6,424,413 6,630,099 6,478,833 lSl,266 

~ s ~ Public works and sanitation 4,526,445 4,615,665 4,479,867 135,798 

1§ r,l'I Public safety 938,573 838,052 814,766 23,286 

i ~~ 
Culture and recreation 1,432,560 1,446,087 1,373,114 72,973 
Health 498,648 492,975 492,975 

ll ::i (j Welfare and community development 416,037 4'11,350 392,426 18,924 

lQP Education 281000 31900 31 900 

l~~ 
Total expenditures 14,264,676 14,466,128 14,063,881 402,247 

f ~cn Excess (deficiency) of revenues over cx:pendjtures 373,849 373,849 
~(j 
(/) 

Other financlna sources (u11e1) 
Transfers out {4631495} {46314952 

Total other financing sources (uses) (463,495) (463,495) 

Excas (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over 
expenditures and other financing uses (463,49.S) (89,646) 373,84,9 
Readjustment from prior year fund balance 4631495 463 49.S !4631495} 

$ $ $ 373 849 $ ,89,6462 
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MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GENERAL FUND 

JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- BUDGET PROCESS AND BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Municipal budget is prepared for the General Fund following the requirements of the Autonomous Municipal 
Law of 1991, as amended. It is developed utilizing elements of performan~based program budgeting and zero­
based budgeting and includes estimates of revenues and other somces for ensuing fiscal year under laws existing at 
the time the budget is prepared. 

Budget amendments are approved by the Municipal Legislature. Certain budget transfers within the limitations and 
restrictions of the Municipal Law can be approved by the Mayor or by the Municipal Legislature. The budget 
comparison schedule provides information about the original budget, the amended budget and the actual results, 
under 'the budgetary basis of accounting. 

The budgetary basis of accounting is different from GAAP. Revenues are generally recorded when cash is received 
and expenditures are generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. The encumbrances 
(that is, purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when a commitment is made. On a GAAP basis 
encwnbrances outstanding at year-end are reported in tb.e governmental funds statements as assigned fund halaoce 
since they do not constitute expendiwes or liabilities while on a budgetary basis encumbrances are recorded as 
expenditures of the CUirent year. Encumbrance appropriations lapse one year after the end of the fiscal year. 
Unencumbered appropriations are lapsed at year-end. The legal level of budgetary control (the level at which 
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is at the function level. 

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other ·appropriations such as capital projects, debt service and 
special revenue funds because projects are funded on a multi-year nature, generally requiring several years to 
complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through general obligation bond indentures and 
legal and contractual grant agreement provisions. 

NOTE B - BUDGET READJUSTMENT 

The budgetary comparison schedule - general fund present a fund balance readjuslment of$463,495. This represents 
a readjustment of current year budget with prior year's budgetary surpluses. 

NOTE C - BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION 

The accompanying budgetary comparison schedule presents comparisons of the original and final legally adopted 
budget with actual data on a budgetary basis. Since accounting principles applied for 'the purposes of developing 
data on a budgetary basis differ significantly from those used to present accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States, the following budget to GAAP reconciliation is presented: 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
BUDGET ARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE • GENERAL FUND 

JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE B -BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION - Continued 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and. other financing 
uses (budgetary basis): 

Budget to GAAP differences: 

Non budgeted funds recorded as revenues fur :financial reporting purposes: 

Non budgeted funds recorded as expenditures for financial reporting: 

Non budgeted transfers in: 

Revenues recorded for financial reporting pwposes but not in budgetary btuis: 

Revenues recorded in budgetary~ pmposes but not in financial reporting: 

Expenditures recorded in budgetary basis but not for finaociaJ reporting purposes: 

Expenditures recorded for financial reporting purposes but not in budgetary basis: 

Readjustment from prior year fund balance recorded for budgetary basis purposes 

but not in financial reporting: 

Current year encumbrances recorded as expenditmes for budgetary reporting 
purposes: 

Prior year encumbrances recorded as expenditures fur :financial reporting 
purposes: 

Net change in fond balance (GAAP basis): 
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$ 

373,849 

1,324,420 

(1,054,298) 

464,333 

892,413 

(152,737) 

23,641 

(1,018,566) 

(463,495) 

251,928 

(317,710) 

323,778 
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Lme Item No. 

111 

l 13 

100 

122 

120 

150 

164 

166 
160 

180 

190 

290 

322 

332 

310 

353 
354 

350 

300 

508.4 
512.4 

513 

600 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

14.871 

Description 
Housing Choice 

Balance Sbeet 

Cash - unrestricted 

Cash - other restricted 

Total cash 

Accounts receivable - HUD other projects 

Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

f TotaJ Current Assets 

Furniture, equipment and machinery - administration 

Accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

!Total Non-current Asteb 

!Total Assets 

lTotal Assets and Deferred Outnow of Resources 

Accrued compensated absences - current portion 

Accounts Payable - PHA Projects 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities - other 

Accrued compensated absences - non current 

Total No-...eurrent Liabilities 

!Total Liabilities 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted Net Position 

Total Equity/Net Position 

I Total Liabllitie, Deferred Inlow of Resources and Equity/Net Position 
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$ 94,219 
$ 6,705 

$ 100,924 

$ 2,060 

$ 2,060 

Is 102.984 l 

$ 40,608 

$ (21,188) 

$ 19,420 

I s 19,420 I 

Is 122,404) 

I s 121,4041 

$ 10.500 

$ 11,350 

s 21,850 

$ 2,585 

$ 20,254 

s 22,839 

Is 

$ 19,420 
s 58,295 

s 77,715 

Is 122,4041 
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70600-010 

- 70600-020 
70600 

71100 - 71500 
72000 
700 

91100 
91200 - 91500 

9 1600 

91000 

96200 
96210 
96000 

96900 

97000 

97300-050 
97300 

97350 
97400 

900 

10000 -
-
-

COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND 'EXPENSES 

INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Description 

Income Statement 
Housing assistance payments $ 

Ongoing administrative fees earned s 
HUD PHA operating grants s 

Investment income - unrestricted $ 

Other revenue $ 

Investment income - restricted s 
Total Revenue s 

Administrative salaries $ 

Auditing fees $ 

Employee benefit contributions- administrative $ 

Office expenses $ 

Total Operating - Administrative $ 

Other general expenses $ 

Compensated absences $ 

Total Other ~neraJ Exoenses s 

!Total Operating Expenses Is 

I Excess Revenue Over Operating Expenses Is 
All Other s 
Housin2 assistance payments s 
HAP Portability-in s 
Depreciation expense $ 

Total Exoenses s 

I Excess (DeOcieocy) of Reveoue Over (Under) Expenses Is 
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14.871 
Housing C hoice 

Vouclaers 

488, 127 

78,480 

566,607 

525 
69,347 

15 
636,494 

64,413 

l,600 

13,606 
10,040 

89,659 

508 
4,966 
S,'474 

95,1331 

s41,361 I 

551 ,337 

551 ,337 

47,777 

6,116 
700,363 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

14.871 

LiaelemNo. Descripli• llDmhls Oloke v--... 
.. c.ne Stlte•ltt 

10000 Excess (Deficiency) ofRelnue ~r (Uider) F.lpenses $ (63,869) 

11030 !Beginning equity Is 169,331 I 
11~10 Prior period adjustments, equity transfers, and com:ction ofenors s (27,748.00) 

11040 Prior period adjustme11ts, equity tnnsfen, utd correctioa ol errors $ (27,748.00) 

11770-001 Administrative Fee E.quity - Beginning Balance $ 114,618 

11170-010 Administrative Fee Revenue s 78,480 

11170-040 Investment Income $ 525 

11170-050 Other Revenue $ 59,779 
Other revenue 

composition is as follows: 
PMl Adm Fee $6,303 
PMIHAP S41,m 

ll 170-051 Comment For Other Rf:venue Miscellaneous SS,699 

11170-060 Total Admin Fee Revenues s 138,784 

11170-080 Total Operating &penses $ 95,132 

11170-()I)() Depreciation $ 6,116 

11110-095 Housing Assistance Portability ln $ 47,777 

11170-100 Other &pens es $ 26,662 
Effectofpriorperiod 

lll~IOI CormnentForOtherf.>q>ense adjustment recorded in 
line ll~IO. 

11170-110 Total EJ<penses $ 175,687 

11170-002 Net Administrative Fee $ (36,903) 

11170-003 Administrative Fee Equity - Fnding Balance $ 77,715 

11 170-006 Post-2003 Administrative Fee Reserves s n,715 

11170 Admioistrati\e Fee f4uity s 77,715 
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11180-001 
11180-010 
11 180-020 

-
11180-021 

11180-025 - 11180-030 

11180-080 
11180-090 - l ll 80-09 l 

11180-100 
l1180-002 
11180-003 

11180 -
111 90-210 

11190 

11210 

11640 

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Income Statement 

Housing Assistance Payments Equity - Beginning Balance 
Housing Assistance Payments Revenues 
Other Revenue 

Comment For Other Revenue 

investment lncome 

Total HAP Revenues 
Housing Assistance Payments 
Other Expenses 

Comment For Other Expense 

Total Housing Assistance Payments Expenses 
Net Housing Assistance Payments 
Housing Assistance Payments Equity - Ending Balance 

Housing Assistance Payments Equity 

Total ACC HCV Units 
Unit Months Available 

Unit Months Leased 
Furniture an Equipment - Administrative Purchases 
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$ 54,713 

s 490,187 
s 7,508 
Other revenue composition 

is as follows: 
FSS Forfeitures $7 ,508 

$ 15 
$ 497,710 
$ 551,337 
$ 1,086 

Effect of prior period 
adjustment recorded in line 

11040-010. 
s 552.423 
$ (54,713) 
$ -
s -

l ,452 
1,452 

1,451 

s 2,358 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying financial data schedule (FDS) is a trial balance of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
Program administered by the Municipality. The FDS was created in order to standardize the financial information 
reported by Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to the Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC), as required by the 
Uniform Financial Reporting Standards (UFRS). REAC is the US Department of Housing and 'Urban Development 
(HUD) national management center created to assess the condition of HUD owned and assisted properties. The 
UFRS are rules to implement requirements of 24 CFR, Part 5, Subpart H, for the electronic filing of financial 
information to JfUD. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

In accordance with the guidelines for reporting and attestation requirements of UFRS, the accompanying FDS is 
included as information supplementary to the financial statements. It is prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. as required by REAC n:gulations. 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIP,ALITY OF AGUADA 

SCHEDULEOFEXPENDITURESOFFEDERAL 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Fedenl Granter/Paa Tllrougll 
GrumrtPr!gra Title 

U.S. Dmartmaat oCAgricg!taR 
Passed tbrooOi program from: 

P.R. Deplrtment of Educalioo: 
Orild and Adult Csre Food Program 

U.S. Dmartl!p!t of H!l!li• Hcl Urbu PmMpegt 
Direcl prognum: 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program 

Passed-«hrougb progl1llllS from: 
Office ofCgmmjpiner ofMunjejpo! Affiijrs: 

Community Development Blook Gnmts/Stale's Program and Non-Entitlement 
Omits in Hawaii 

PR Depulmqtt ofFamily - Families and Cbi!dren Admiojgption 
Fmergency Soluliom Grants Program 

U.S. Dq!art!DqltoCJustice 
Passed-«hrougb programs from: 

P.R. Deplnrnent of Justice; 
ARRA · Eward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Propm I Grants 
to Si:ltes and Territories 

U.S. Dq!artmegt oCTraatp0rtatio9 
Passed-through programs from: 

P.R. Department ofDwportatioo: 

Federal Transit Formula Granls 

lnstihde or MMH!!IB ud Llbnrv Sm1c:q 
Passed-dtrougb program from: 

P.R Dep@tma!t of Education: 
Grants to SlaleS 

U.S. J)g!artmgt o(E!my 
Passed-tbrollgh program from: 

P.R. Energy Affirin Administration: 
ARRA- Eoagy Efficiency lsid Consavarion Blook Omit Program (EECBG) 

U.S. Depar1pelt of Hqlt!t 1Dd ft••• Smim 
Passed-through programs 'li:om: 

P. R. Office ofOmbl!dsmap Ad!Djnj\trJlion COAPl· 
Aging a.ter. 
Special Programs for the Aging_ Tittle ill Part B _ Grants for S\lpp()ltive Services 
and Senior Centers 
Nllianal Flmily ~~Title ID, Pml E 
Tolal Agiilg a..r. 

P.R. Deolnmcl!t ofFllDily · families and Children AdminjstrAtjon: 
Cbild Qire md ~t Bloct Gm 

S.btoUI U.S. DeplrmeM of Bea!UI ud B-• Servica: 

U.S. Da!artwlfoCHomdald Sc:gm 
Passed-Cluoogh proGJ1llDS from: 

P.R. Governors Office. Governors Au1hori2led Representative (GAR) 
Disa&er Grants· Public AssistanGe (Presidentillly DeclaRld Disasters) 
Pre> Dislsla' Mitiption 

Sabtotll U.S. Depart.- ofH8!Mlud Secuity: 

Tow federal awa.nb es.i-clitu'a: 

Federal 
CFDA 

Nutber 

IO.SSS 

14.871 

14.228 

14.231 

16.592 

20.507 

45.310 

81.128 

93.044 
90.0j2 

93.S7S 

97.036 
97.047 

CCC-79 

NIA 

AF-37, AB-37, FD-37 

272-1220000-14F-2013·E-12-DC-72-0001 
272-1220000-081-2012-Sl 1-DC720001 

2009-DJ-ECUMA..Ol 

PR-90-X284-00 

LSTA 20l 1-2012/BP007 

DE-EE0001694 

130378R2 
130378R2 

2012-2013~2 

FEMA-4017-DR-PR. PA 1.D. 003-99003..00 
PDMC-PL-02-PR-2010-003 
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Federal 

E!J)e!di!!ra 

s 16,94S 

566,607 

736,827 

69995 
1,373,429 

70,000 

37,046 

10,000 

58,449 

54,066 
17,9:26 
71,.992 

186 78S 
zss.m 

26,034 
187SO 
44,784 

s 1.8§9,430 



COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTESTOSCHEDULEOFEXPENDI11JRESOFFEDERALAWARDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE A- REPORTING ENTITY 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of 
the Municipality, except the federal grant activities related to Jardines de Aguada Project (the Project). As described 
in Note A to the Municipality's basic financial statements, the basic financial statements includes the operations of 
the Project as a business-type activity and an enterprise fund. The Project expended $2,421,384 in federal awards as 
follows: 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

US Department of Agriculture: 
Direct Program: 
USDA Rural Development Section 515 

US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development: 

Direct Program: 
Section 8 Housing Asfilstance Payments 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

10.415 

14.195 

Expenditures 

s 2,083,828 

337,556 
s 2.421,384 

The Project has obtained a separate A-133 audit, which is not included as part of this audit. A copy of this audit 
report can be obtained by contacting Project's administrative office at Box 68, Trujillo Alto, Puerto Rico 00978. 

NOTE B- BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant acti\'.ity of the Municipality 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2013. The information in this schedule is presented 
in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments 01ld Nonprofit 
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in 
the preparation of, the basic financial statements. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations 
of the Municipality, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position and changes in net assets of the 
Municipality. 

NOTE c - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLicms 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. except for Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV). Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred following the 
cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbwsement. Expenditures for HCV Program are 
reported on a statutory basis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Such expenditures 

· should equal the net ACC subsidy for the PHA 's fiscal period. 

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number is a program identification number. The first two digits 
identify the federal department or agency that administers the program and the last three numbers are assigned by 
numerical sequence. 

State or local government redistributions of federal awards to the Municipality, known as "pass-through awards", should 
be treated by the Municipality as though they were received directly from the federal government. OMB Circular A-133 
requires 'fbe schedule to include the name of the pass-through entity and the identifying number assigned by the pass­
through entity for the federal awards received as a subrecipient. Numbers identified as NJ A are not applicable and numbers 
identified as N/ AV are not available. 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE D - RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE SCHEDULE OF 
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS TO THE EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE BASIC 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Description 

Community 
Development Block 

Grant Program 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

10.558 
14.228 
14.871 
14.231 

$ $ 16,945 

ARRA - 15.592 
20.507 
45.310 

ARRA - 81.128 
93.044 
90,052 
93.575 
97.036 
97.047 

Total federal awards expenditures (not 
including federal grants activiti~ of 
Jardines de Aguada Projed (see note A): 

Additional amount recorded as 
expen~ under modified accrual basis 
for Section 8 HCV Program: 

Non-federaJ awards expenditures: 

Tobll expenditures, fuad mtements: 

736,827 

736,827 

s $ 

Gr G oNZALFZ T oRREs & C o., PSC 
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568,667 
69,995 
70,000 
37,046 
10,000 
58,449 
54,066 
17,926 

186,785 
26,034 
18,750 

1,134,663 

69,398 

813,062 

2,017.123 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Hon. Jessie Cortes Ramos and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Aguada 

Agu• Puerto Rico 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicahle to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely 
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Mtm.icipality of Aguada, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated March 19, 2014. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of 
Aguada's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Rio Piedras Heights. 1733 Calle Tinro, San Jnan, PR 00926-3252 
wv.w.gtcpapr.com • Tel. 787 306-7777 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS (Continued) 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
Municipality of Aguada' s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity' s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

San J~ Puerto Rico 
March 19, 2014 

The stamp number 02698446 
was affixed to the original report. 

~fffi!~~-p~ ;J;~ 
License 96 
Expires Dec-ember 1, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Hon. Jessie Cortes Ramos and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature oftbe 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Aguada 
Aguada, Puerto Rico 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Agua.da's compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, 
Municipality of Aguada's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's major federal programs are identified 

- in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs 

- Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, 
- and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

-

-

-

-

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico, Municipality of Aguada's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other proced,ures as we considered necessary in the 
circwnstances. 

Rio Piedras Heights. 1733 Calle Tinto. San Juan, PR 00926-3252 
www,gtcpapr,com • TeL 787 306-7777 



- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (Continued) 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Agua~'s compliance. 

Opinion on. Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada complied, in all material 
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, 
we considered Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-133, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Municipality of Aguada's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal conlTol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in intelnal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (Continued) 

The purpose of this report on intemaJ control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
March 19, 2014 

The stamp number 02698447 
was affixed to the original report. 

License 96 
Expires December l, 2014 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Section I. Summary of Auditors' Results: 

Part I Financial Statements 

1. Type of audit report: 

[&J Unqualified opinion 0 Qualified opinion 

0 Adverse opinion 0 Disclaimer of opinion 

2. Reportable conditions reported 

OYes No 

3. Reportable condition reported as a major weakness and/or significant 
deficiency: 

DYes No 

4. Material noncompliance disclosed: 

0 Yes No 

Part Il Federal Awards 

1. Type of report: on compliance for major programs: 

[&J Unqualified opinion 0 Qualified.opinion 

0 Adverse opinion 0 Disclaimer of opinion 

2. Reportable condition reported as a major weakness and/or significant 
deficiency: 

OYes 

3. Material noncompliance disclosed: 

DYes 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Section I. Summary of Auditon' Results (continued): 

Part II Federal Awards (continued): 

4. Audit findings required to be reported. under Section 510 (a) of Circular A-
133: 

0 Yes No 

5. Major Programs: 
CfDA Number (s) Federal Program Grantor I Program Name 

14.228 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development: Community Development 

Block Grants/State Grants 

14.871 

6. 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development: Section 8 Housing Choice 

Vouchers 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish Type A 
and Type B programs: 

7. Low-risk auditee 

D Yes 

8. Waive risk criteria under 520 (i) of Circular A-133 

D Yes 

Gr GoNZALEZ ToRRES & Co., PSC 
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COMMONWEALm OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESflONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Section II. Financial Statements Findings 

None. 

Section ID. Federal Awards Finding$ and Questioned Costs 

None. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUADA 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

The following sehedule contains the finding number, CFDA Number, and title of each of the findings 
included in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Ea.ch Major Program and 
Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the Fiscal Year 
ended June 30, 2011 . Under the heading Corrective Action Taken there will be the following: 

FR - Fully Resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was fully implemented) 

PR - Partially Resolved (indicating the corrective action plan was partially implemented and the 
finding repeat.ed in fiscal year 2012-2013) 

NR-Not Resolved Yet. (Finding repeated in fiscal year 2012-2013) 

Original Finding CFDANo. Finding I Noncompliance Action 
Number 
12-01 81.128 Cash Management FR 
12-02 81.128 Reportin2 FR 
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